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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This annual report on Form 10-K (this “report”) contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the federal securities laws, which involve risks and uncertainties.
Forward-looking statements include all statements that do not relate solely to historical or current facts, and you can identify forward-looking statements because they contain words
such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “intends,” “trends,” “plans,” “estimates,” “projects” or “anticipates” or similar expressions that concern the
Company’s strategy, plans, expectations or intentions. All statements made relating to the Company’s estimated and projected earnings, margins, costs, expenditures, cash flows,
growth rates and financial results are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may change at any time, and, therefore,
the Company’s actual results may differ materially from those expected. The Company derives many of its forward-looking statements from its operating budgets and forecasts, which
are based upon many detailed assumptions. While the Company believes that its assumptions are reasonable, it is very difficult to predict the effect of known factors, and it is
impossible to anticipate all factors that could affect the Company’s actual results.
Some of the important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Company’s expectations are disclosed under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this
report. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Company, or persons acting on its behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by these
cautionary statements.
The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as
otherwise required by law.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS
As used in this report, unless otherwise noted or the context otherwise requires: references to “Continental Cement,” “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” are to Continental
Cement Company, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company, and its subsidiary; and references to “Summit Materials” are to Summit Materials, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, and not to its subsidiaries. The Company is a non-wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Summit Materials.
Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, all references to years refer to our fiscal year.
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PART I
ITEM 1.

BUSINESS.

Overview
Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. was formed as a limited liability company in the State of Delaware on May 3, 2010. It produces and supplies cement for a variety of end uses
in the U.S. construction industry, including private residential and non-residential construction and public infrastructure projects. In addition to producing cement, Continental Cement
secures, processes and blends hazardous and nonhazardous waste materials, which is primarily processed into alternative fuels in the cement manufacturing process. Management
believes that Continental Cement is a top 25 producer of cement in the United States by volume. As of December 27, 2014, the Company had 0.4 billion tons of proven and probable
aggregates reserves serving the cement business. In the year ended December 27, 2014, the Company sold 1.0 million tons of cement and generated revenue of $110.1 million from
cement sales and from the receipt of hazardous waste.
The Company’s cement revenue is derived from multiple end-use markets. For the year ended December 27, 2014, approximately 78% of revenue related to residential and nonresidential construction, repair and remodel, and agriculture and the remaining 22% related to public infrastructure construction projects. Public infrastructure construction includes
spending by federal, state and local governments for roads, highways, bridges, airports and other public infrastructure construction projects.
The Company’s cement business operates a highly efficient, technologically advanced, integrated manufacturing and distribution system strategically located in Hannibal,
Missouri, 100 miles north of St. Louis along the Mississippi River. The on-site solid and liquid waste fuel processing facility can reduce Continental Cement’s fuel costs by up to 50%.
In addition to alternative fuels (hazardous and non-hazardous), the cement plant utilizes coal, natural gas and petroleum coke and, as a result, is subject to the National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAP”) for Hazardous Waste Combustor NESHAP (“HWC-MACT”) standards, rather than the NESHAP for Portland Cement Plants (“PCMACT”) standards. Any future costs to comply with the existing HWC-MACT standards are not expected to be material.
End Markets
Residential Construction. Residential construction includes single family homes and multi-family units such as apartments and condominiums. Demand for residential
construction is influenced by employment prospects, new household formation and mortgage interest rates. In recent years, foreclosures have resulted in an oversupply of available
houses, which has dampened the demand for new residential construction in many markets in the United States. However, employment prospects have improved, foreclosure rates have
stabilized and demand has begun to grow, although the rate of growth is inconsistent across the United States.
Non-Residential Construction. Non-residential construction encompasses all privately financed construction other than residential structures. Demand for nonresidential
construction is driven by population and economic growth. Population growth spurs demand for stores, shopping centers and restaurants. Economic growth creates demand for
projects such as hotels, office buildings, warehouses and factories. The supply of non-residential construction projects is affected by interest rates and the availability of credit to
finance these projects.
Public Infrastructure Sector Construction. Public infrastructure sector construction includes spending by federal, state and local governments for highways, bridges, airports,
schools, public buildings and other public infrastructure projects. Public infrastructure spending has historically been more stable than private sector construction. Management
believes that public infrastructure spending is less sensitive to interest rate changes and economic cycles and often is supported by multi-year federal and state legislation and
programs. The supply of funding for public infrastructure highway construction significantly affects the Company’s public infrastructure sector construction business.
In the past, public infrastructure sector funding was underpinned by a series of six-year federal highway authorization bills. Federal funds are allocated to the states, which are
required to match a portion of the federal funds they receive. Federal highway spending uses funds predominantly from the Federal Highway Trust Fund, which derives its revenue from
taxes on diesel fuel, gasoline and other user fees. The dependability of federal funding allows the state departments of transportation to plan for their long term highway construction
and maintenance needs.
Funding for the existing federal transportation funding program expired on September 30, 2014 and on August 1, 2014, a Highway Trust Fund extension bill was enacted. This bill
provides approximately $10.8 billion of funding, which is expected to last until May 2015. Any additional funding or successor programs have yet to be approved. With the nation’s
infrastructure aging, the Company expects U.S. infrastructure spending to grow over the long term, and it believes it is well positioned to capitalize on any such increase.
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In addition to federal funding, highway construction and maintenance funding is also available through state, county and local agencies. Missouri, the state where the Company
derives the majority of its revenue, has funds whose revenue sources are constitutionally protected and may only be spent on transportation projects. Missouri has an estimated $0.7
billion in annual construction funding committed to essential road and bridge programs through 2017.
Industry
Participants in the cement industry typically range from small, privately-held companies focused on providing cement in a single market to multinational corporations that offer a
wide array of construction materials and services. Competition is constrained in part by the distance materials can be transported efficiently, resulting in predominantly local or regional
operations. Cement is costly to transport over land. Consequently, the radius within which a typical cement plant is competitive extends for no more than 150 miles for the most common
types of cement. Cement products lack differentiation, therefore competition is based predominantly on price. As a result, prices charged by Continental Cement are likely to be
consistent with prices charged by other producers in the same markets. Accordingly, the Company’s profitability is generally dependent on the level of demand for its products and its
ability to control operating costs.
Cement
Portland cement, an industry term for the common cement in general use around the world, is a fundamental building material consumed in several stages throughout the
construction cycle of residential, non-residential and public infrastructure projects. It is a binding agent that, when mixed with sand or aggregates and water, produces either readymixed concrete or mortar and is an important component of other essential construction materials. Cement is sold either in bulk or in bags as branded products, depending on its final
user. Few construction projects can take place without utilizing cement somewhere in the design, making it a key ingredient used in the construction industry. The majority of all cement
shipments are sent to ready-mixed concrete operators. The remaining shipments are directed to manufacturers of concrete related products such as block and precast.
The principal raw materials in cement are a blend of approximately 80% limestone and approximately 10% shale, with the remaining raw materials being clay and iron ore.
Generally, the limestone and shale are mined from quarries or underground mines located on site with the production plant. These core ingredients are blended and crushed into a fine
grind and then preheated and ultimately introduced into a kiln heated to about 3,000°F. Under this extreme heat, a chemical transformation occurs uniting the elements to form a new
substance with new physical and chemical characteristics. This new substance is called clinker and it is formed into pieces approximately the size of marbles. The clinker is then cooled
and later ground into a fine powder that then is classified as Portland cement.
Cement production in the United States is distributed among 98 production facilities located across 34 states. It is a capital-intensive business with variable costs dominated by
raw materials and energy required to fuel the kiln. Building new plants is challenging given the extensive permitting that is required and significant costs. Management believes new
plant construction costs in the United States to be approximately $250-300 per ton, not including costs for property or securing raw materials and the required distribution network.
Assuming construction costs of $275 per ton, a 1.25 million ton facility, comparable to Continental Cement’s plant’s potential annual capacity, would cost approximately $343.8 million to
construct.
As reported by the Portland Cement Association (“PCA”) in the 2014 United States Cement Industry Annual Yearbook, consumption is down significantly from the industry
peak of approximately 141.1 million tons in 2005 to approximately 90.3 million tons in 2013 because of the decline in U.S. construction activity. U.S. cement consumption has at times
outpaced domestic production capacity with the shortfall being supplied with imports, primarily from China, Canada, Greece, Mexico and South Korea. The PCA reports that cement
imports have declined since their peak of approximately 39.6 million tons in 2006 to approximately 8.0 million tons in 2013, in a manner indicative of the industry’s general response to the
current demand downturn. In addition to the reduction in imports, U.S. excess capacity increased from 5% in 2006 to approximately 32% in 2013 according to the PCA. U.S. capacity
utilization declined from 95% in 2006 to 68% in 2013 according to the PCA. Continental Cement operated above the industry mean at 85% capacity utilization in 2014 as its markets did
not suffer the pronounced demand declines seen in other states. Demand is seasonal in nature with nearly two-thirds of U.S. consumption occurring between May and November,
coinciding with end-market construction activity.
Competition
Construction of cement production facilities is highly capital intensive and requires long lead times to complete engineering design, obtain regulatory permits, acquire equipment
and construct a plant. Most U.S. cement producers are owned by large foreign companies operating in multiple international markets. Continental Cement’s largest competitors include
Holcim (US) Inc. and Lafarge North America Inc. whose parent companies announced a merger plan in April 2014 that would create the world’s largest cement maker, in addition to,
Buzzi Unicem USA, Inc. and Eagle Materials Inc. Competitive factors include price, reliability of deliveries, location, quality of cement and support services. With a new cement plant,
on-site raw material aggregate supply, a network of cement terminals, and longstanding customer relationships, management believes that the Company is well positioned to serve its
customers.
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Customers
The Company’s business is not dependent on any single customer or a few customers. Therefore, the loss of any single or particular small number of customers would not have
a material adverse effect on any individual respective market in which the Company operates or on the Company as a whole. Approximately 15%, 16% and 13% of cement sales were to
companies owned by a certain minority owner of the Company in the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. Continental Cement’s
cement customers are ready-mixed concrete and concrete product producers and contractors within the Midwestern United States. Sales are made on the basis of competitive prices in
each market and, as is customary in the industry, the Company does not typically enter into long-term sales contracts. Cement demand is observed to have low elasticity in relation to
prices. Management believes this is partially explained by the absence of competitive replacement products and relatively low contribution of cement to construction costs.
Management does not believe that increases in cement prices are likely to affect the decision to undertake a construction project since cement costs usually represent a small portion of
total construction costs.
In addition to producing cement, Continental Cement secures, processes and blends hazardous and nonhazardous waste materials primarily for use as supplemental fuels in the
cement manufacturing process. Continental Cement’s primary customers for this service are commercial transportation disposal facilities and petroleum and chemical manufacturers
located in the continental United States.
Continental Cement’s primary markets include eastern Missouri, southeastern Iowa and central/northwestern Illinois. Cement is distributed to local customers primarily by truck
from the Company’s plant and distribution terminals in St. Louis, Missouri and Bettendorf, Iowa. The Company also transports cement by inland barges on the Mississippi River to its
storage and distribution terminals.
Seasonality
Use and consumption of the Company’s products fluctuate due to seasonality as Portland cement is predominately used outdoors. Therefore, seasonal changes and other
weather-related conditions, in particular extended rainy and cold weather in the spring and fall and major weather events, such as tornadoes, flooding and heavy snows, can adversely
affect the Company’s business and operations through a decline in the use of its products. In addition, cement shipment levels follow activity in the construction industry, which
typically occurs in the spring, summer and fall. Warmer and drier weather during the second and third quarters of the Company’s fiscal year typically result in higher activity and
revenue levels during those quarters. The first quarter of the Company’s fiscal year has typically lower levels of activity due to weather conditions. However, other than planned
maintenance shutdowns in the first quarter and late summer, the cement plant is designed to run 24 hours a day, seven days a week.
Intellectual Property
Continental Cement does not own or have a license or other rights under any patents that are material to its business.
Employees
As of December 27, 2014, the Company had approximately 240 employees of whom approximately 64.0% were hourly workers and 36.0% were full time salaried employees.
Approximately 60.3% of total employees were union members under three collective bargaining agreements. Management believes that the working relationship with the Company’s
employees and their unions are satisfactory. The Company’s collective bargaining agreements for employees generally expire between 2015 and 2018.
ITEM 1A.

RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to the Company’s Business and Industry
Industry Risks
The Company’s business depends on activity within the construction industry.
The Company sells most of its cement to the construction industry, so its results are significantly affected by the strength of the construction industry. Demand for its products,
particularly in the residential and nonresidential construction markets, could decline if companies and consumers cannot obtain credit for construction projects or if the slow pace of
economic activity results in delays or cancellations of capital projects. In addition, federal and state budget issues may continue to hurt the funding available for infrastructure
spending.
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Because of the high cost to transport products relative to their price, the Company’s earnings depend on the strength of the local economies in which it operates. In recent
years, many states have reduced their construction spending due to budget shortfalls resulting from lower tax revenue as well as uncertainty relating to long-term federal highway
funding. As a result, there has been a reduction in many states’ investment in infrastructure spending. If economic and construction activity diminishes in one or more areas,
particularly in Missouri, the Company’s top revenue-generating market, its financial position, results of operations and liquidity could be materially adversely affected, and there is no
assurance that reduced levels of construction activity will not affect the Company’s business in the future.
The Company’s business could suffer from a significant increase of cement imports from other countries.
Cement customers in the United States have the option to purchase cement from companies located in other countries. With a significant increase in environmental regulations
in the United States, domestic cement producers could confront higher production costs than foreign cement producers who may operate in a less stringent regulatory environment. An
influx of cement and clinker imports from foreign countries could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
The Company’s business is cyclical and requires significant working capital to fund operations.
The Company’s business is cyclical and requires that it maintain significant working capital to fund its operations. The Company’s ability to generate sufficient cash flow
depends on future performance, which will be subject to general economic conditions, industry cycles and financial, business and other factors affecting its operations, many of which
are beyond management’s control. If Continental Cement or Summit Materials are unable to generate sufficient cash to operate the business and service its outstanding debt and other
obligations, management may be required, among other things, to further reduce or delay planned capital or operating expenditures, sell assets or take other measures, including the
restructuring of all or a portion of Summit Materials’ debt, which may only be available, if at all, on unsatisfactory terms.
Weather can materially affect the Company’s business and it is subject to seasonality.
Cement is predominately used outdoors. Therefore, seasonal changes and other weather-related conditions can adversely affect the Company’s business and operations
through a decline in the use of the Company’s products. Adverse weather conditions such as extended rainy and cold weather in the spring and fall can reduce demand for the
Company’s cement and reduce sales. Major weather events such as tornadoes, floods and heavy snows with quick rainy melts could adversely affect sales in the near term.
Cement shipment levels follow activity in the construction industry, which typically occurs in the spring, summer and fall. Warmer and drier weather during the second and third
quarters of the Company’s fiscal year typically result in higher activity and revenue levels during those quarters. The first quarter of the Company’s fiscal year has typically lower levels
of activity due to the weather conditions. The Company’s second quarter varies greatly with the spring rains and wide temperature variations. A cool, wet spring increases drying time
on projects, possibly delaying sales in the second quarter, while a warm, dry spring may enable earlier project startup.
The Company’s industry is capital intensive and the Company has significant fixed and semi-fixed costs. Therefore, its earnings are sensitive to changes in volume.
The property and machinery needed to produce cement can be very expensive. Therefore, the Company needs to spend a substantial amount of capital to purchase and maintain
the equipment necessary to operate its business. Although management believes that the Company’s current cash available, along with projected internal cash flows and financing from
Summit Materials, will be enough to support the currently anticipated operating and capital needs, if the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash to purchase and maintain the
property and machinery necessary to operate the business, management may be required to reduce or delay planned capital expenditures or incur additional debt, which may only be
available, if at all, on unsatisfactory terms. In addition, given the level of fixed and semi-fixed costs within the business, decreases in volumes could negatively affect the Company’s
financial position, results of operations and liquidity.
The Company’s products are commodities, which are subject to significant changes in supply and demand and price fluctuations.
Portland cement is a commodity product and competition among manufacturers is based largely on price. Prices are often subject to material changes in response to relatively
minor fluctuations in supply and demand, general economic conditions and other market conditions beyond our control. Increases in the production capacity of industry participants or
increases in cement imports tend to create an oversupply of such products leading to an imbalance between supply and demand, which can have a negative effect on product prices.
There can be no assurance that prices for products sold by the Company will not decline in the future or that such declines will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
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Economic Risks
The Company’s business relies on private investment in infrastructure and a slower than expected recovery will adversely affect its results.
A significant portion of the Company’s sales are for projects with private customers. Construction spending is affected by developers’ ability to finance projects. The credit
environment has negatively affected the U.S. economy and demand for the Company’s products in the recent past. Residential and non-residential construction could decline if
companies and consumers are unable to finance construction projects or if an economic recovery is stalled, which could result in delays or cancellations of capital projects. If housing
starts and non-residential projects do not continue to rise steadily with the economic recovery as they normally do when recessions end, cement sales may fall and the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations and liquidity could be materially adversely affected.
A decline in public infrastructure sector construction and reductions in governmental funding could adversely affect the Company’s operations and results.
A portion of the Company’s revenue is generated from publicly-funded construction projects. As a result, if publicly-funded construction decreases due to reduced federal or
state funding or otherwise, the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity could be negatively affected.
In January 2011, the U.S. House of Representatives passed a new rules package that repealed a transportation law dating back to 1998, which protected annual funding levels
from amendments that could reduce such funding. This rule change subjects funding for highways to yearly appropriation reviews. The change in the funding mechanism increases the
uncertainty of many state departments of transportation regarding funds for highway projects. This uncertainty could result in states being reluctant to undertake large multi-year
highway projects which could, in turn, negatively affect the Company’s sales. Funding for Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century, expired on September 30, 2014 and on
August 1, 2014, a Highway Trust Fund extension bill was enacted that provides approximately $10.8 billion of funding, which is expected to last until May 2015. Any additional funding
or successor programs have yet to be approved and management is uncertain as to the size and term of the transportation funding program that will follow.
As a result of the foregoing and other factors, management cannot be assured of the existence, amount and timing of appropriations for spending on federal, state or local
projects. Federal support for the cost of highway maintenance and construction is dependent on congressional action. In addition, each state funds its infrastructure spending from
specially allocated amounts collected from various taxes, typically gasoline taxes and vehicle fees, along with voter-approved bond programs. Shortages in state tax revenues can
reduce the amounts spent on state infrastructure projects, even below amounts awarded under legislative bills. In recent years, nearly all states have experienced state-level funding
pressures caused by lower tax revenues and an inability to finance approved projects. Delays or cancellations of state infrastructure spending could negatively affect the Company’s
financial position, results of operations and liquidity because a significant portion of its business is dependent on public infrastructure spending.
Environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, and any changes to, or liabilities arising under, such laws and regulations, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
The Company’s operations are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to, among other things: (i) the release or discharge of materials into the
environment; (ii) the management, use, generation, treatment, processing, handling, storage, transport or disposal of hazardous materials, including the management of hazardous waste
used as a fuel substitute at the Company’s cement kiln; and (iii) the protection of public and employee health and safety and the environment. These laws and regulations impose strict
liability in some cases without regard to negligence or fault and exposes the Company to liability for the environmental condition of currently or formerly owned or operated facilities or
third-party waste disposal sites, and may expose the Company to liability for the conduct of others or for its actions, even if such actions complied with all applicable laws at the time
these actions were taken. In particular, the Company may incur remediation costs and other related expenses because the Company’s facilities were constructed and operated before the
adoption of current environmental laws and the institution of compliance practices or because certain of the Company’s processes are regulated. These laws and regulations may also
expose the Company to liability for claims of personal injury or property or natural resource damage related to alleged exposure to, or releases of, regulated or hazardous materials. The
existence of contamination at properties the Company owns, leases or operates could also result in increased operational costs or restrictions on its ability to use those properties as
intended, including for purposes of mining.
Despite the Company’s compliance efforts, there is an inherent risk of liability in the operation of its business, especially from an environmental standpoint, or from time to time,
the Company may be in noncompliance with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations. These potential liabilities or noncompliances could have an adverse effect on the
Company’s operations and profitability. In many instances, the Company must have government approvals, certificates, permits or licenses in order to conduct its
5
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business, which often require significant capital, operating and maintenance expenditures to comply with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations. The Company’s failure
to obtain and maintain required approvals, certificates, permits or licenses or to comply with applicable governmental requirements could result in sanctions, including substantial fines
or possible revocation of its authority to conduct some or all of its operations. Governmental requirements that affect the Company’s operations also include those relating to air and
water quality, waste management, asset reclamation, remediation of contaminated sites and worker health and safety. These requirements are complex and subject to frequent change.
Stricter laws and regulations, more stringent interpretations of existing laws or regulations or the future discovery of environmental conditions may impose new liabilities on the
Company, reduce operating hours, require additional investment by the Company in pollution control equipment or impede its opening new or expanding existing plants or facilities. The
Company has incurred, and may in the future incur, significant capital and operating expenditures to comply with such laws and regulations. The cost of complying with such laws
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity. In addition, the Company has recorded liabilities in connection with its
reclamation obligations, but there can be no assurances that the costs of its obligations will not exceed amounts accrued.
Financial Risks
Difficult and volatile conditions in the economies in which the Company operates could affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity.
Demand for the Company’s products is primarily dependent on the overall health of the economy, and federal, state and local public funding levels. A stagnant or declining
economy tends to produce less tax revenue for public infrastructure agencies, thereby decreasing a source of funds available for spending on public infrastructure improvements, which
constitute a part of the Company’s business.
The Company’s operations are subject to special hazards that may cause personal injury or property damage, subjecting it to liabilities and possible losses which may not be
covered by insurance.
Operating hazards inherent in the Company’s business, some of which may be outside the Company’s control, can cause personal injury and loss of life, damage to or
destruction of property, plant and equipment and environmental damage. The Company is covered under insurance plans managed by Summit Materials for amounts and against the
risks management believes are consistent with industry practice, but this insurance may not be adequate or available to cover all losses or liabilities the Company may incur in its
operations. Summit Materials’ insurance policies are subject to varying levels of deductibles. Losses up to the deductible amounts are accrued based upon estimates of the ultimate
liability for claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. However, liabilities subject to insurance are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors,
including the severity of an injury, the determination of the Company’s liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents not reported and the effectiveness of the
Company’s safety programs. Insurance claims or costs above the Company’s estimates could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations
and liquidity.
The Company may incur material costs and losses as a result of claims that its products do not meet regulatory requirements or contractual specifications.
The Company provides its customers with products that are designed to meet building code or other regulatory requirements and contractual specifications for measurements
such as durability, compressive strength, weight-bearing capacity and other characteristics. If the Company fails or is unable to provide products meeting these requirements and
specifications, material claims may arise against the Company and its reputation could be damaged. Additionally, if a significant uninsured, non-indemnified or product-related claim is
resolved against the Company in the future, that resolution could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
Other Risks
Labor disputes could disrupt operations of the Company’s businesses.
As of December 27, 2014, labor unions represented approximately 60.3% of the Company’s total employees. The Company’s collective bargaining agreements for employees
generally expire between 2015 and 2018. Although management believes that the Company has good relations with its employees and unions, disputes with the Company’s trade
unions, or the inability to renew labor agreements, could lead to strikes or other actions that could disrupt the Company’s operations and could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
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The Company uses large amounts of electricity, natural gas, fossil fuels and diesel fuel that are subject to potential reliability issues, supply constraints and significant price
fluctuation, which could affect its operating results and profitability.
In the Company’s production and distribution processes, it consumes significant amounts of electricity, natural gas, fossil fuels and diesel fuel. The availability and pricing of
these resources are subject to market forces that are beyond the Company’s control. Furthermore, the Company is vulnerable to any reliability issues experienced by its suppliers, which
also are beyond its control. The Company’s suppliers contract separately for the purchase of such resources and its sources of supply could be interrupted should suppliers not be
able to obtain these materials due to higher demand or other factors that interrupt their availability. Variability in the supply and prices of these resources could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity from period to period.
Climate change and climate change legislation or regulations may adversely affect the Company’s business.
A number of governmental bodies have introduced or are contemplating legislative and regulatory changes in response to the potential effects of climate change. Such
legislation or regulation has and potentially could include provisions for a “cap and trade” system of allowances and credits, among other provisions. The EPA promulgated a
mandatory reporting rule covering greenhouse gas emissions from sources considered to be large emitters. The EPA has also promulgated a greenhouse gas emissions permitting rule,
referred to as the “Tailoring Rule” which sets forth criteria for determining which facilities are required to obtain permits for greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions pursuant to the U.S.
Clean Air Act’s Prevention of Significant Deterioration (“PSD”) and Title V operating permit programs. The U.S. Supreme Court ruled in June 2014 that the EPA exceeded its statutory
authority in issuing the Tailoring Rule but upheld the Best Available Control Technology (“BACT”) requirements for GHGs emitted by sources already subject to PSD requirements for
other pollutants. Our cement plant holds a Title V Permit. If future modifications to our facilities require PSD review for other pollutants, GHG BACT requirements may also be triggered,
which could require significant additional costs.
Other potential effects of climate change include physical effects such as disruption in production and product distribution as a result of major storm events and shifts in
regional weather patterns and intensities. There is also a potential for climate change legislation and regulation to adversely affect the cost of purchased energy and electricity.
The effects of climate change on the Company’s operations are highly uncertain and difficult to estimate. However, because a chemical reaction inherent to the manufacture of
Portland cement releases carbon dioxide, a GHG, cement kiln operations may be disproportionately affected by future regulation of GHGs. Climate change and legislation and regulation
concerning GHGs could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
Unexpected equipment malfunctions, catastrophic events and scheduled maintenance may lead to decreased production or shutdowns.
The reliability and efficiency of the Company’s sole manufacturing kiln is dependent upon vital pieces of equipment. The Company has scheduled outages to perform
maintenance on its cement production facilities. However, the equipment may periodically experience an unanticipated disruption due to an accident, mechanical failure or other
unanticipated event such as a fire, explosion, violent weather conditions or unexpected operational difficulties. A substantial interruption of the cement production operations could
require the Company to make significant capital expenditures to restore operations and could affect the amount of cement available for sale, which could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
The Company is dependent on information technology and its systems and infrastructure face certain risks, including cyber security risks and data leakage risks.
The Company is dependent on information technology systems and infrastructure. Any significant breakdown, invasion, destruction or interruption of these systems by
employees, others with authorized access to the Company’s systems, or unauthorized persons could negatively affect operations. There is also a risk that the Company could
experience a business interruption, theft of information or reputational damage as a result of a cyber attack, such as an infiltration of a data center, or data leakage of confidential
information either internally or at third-party providers. While the Company has invested in the protection of its data and information technology to reduce these risks and periodically
test the security of its information systems network, there can be no assurance that the Company’s efforts will prevent breakdowns or breaches in its systems that could adversely
affect its financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
ITEM 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES.

The Company operates an integrated cement manufacturing and distribution system located in Hannibal, Missouri, 100 miles north of St. Louis along the Mississippi River. It
also operates a waste fuel processing facility at the Hannibal, Missouri location, has distribution terminals in Hannibal and St. Louis, Missouri and Bettendorf, Iowa, a clay mining
operation in Owensville, Missouri and office space for the Company’s headquarters in Chesterfield, Missouri.
ITEM 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

The Company is a party to various legal proceedings relating to its operations. Management presently believes the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in
the aggregate, will not materially affect the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity. However, legal proceedings and government investigations are
subject to inherent uncertainties, and unfavorable rulings or other events could occur, which could materially adversely affect the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations or liquidity.
ITEM 4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

The information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
and Item 104 of Regulation S-K (17 CFR 229.104) is included in Exhibit 95.1 to this report.

PART II
ITEM 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

The Company’s equity securities are not publicly traded. The Company files reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) because of its
status as a non-wholly owned subsidiary guarantor of Summit Materials, LLC’s 10 1⁄2% Senior Notes due 2020. The terms of the agreements governing Summit Materials’ debt limit
certain transactions of the Company, including the Company’s ability to pay dividends to its noncontrolling members, redeem stock or make other distributions.
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ITEM 7.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussion of Continental Cement’s results of operations and financial condition with Continental Cement’s audited consolidated financial
statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements and involves numerous risks and uncertainties,
including, but not limited to, those described in the “Risk Factors” section of this report. Continental Cement’s actual results may differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statements.
Overview
Continental Cement produces Portland cement (“cement”) at its highly efficient, dry cement manufacturing plant located in Hannibal, Missouri and has distribution terminals in
Hannibal and St. Louis, Missouri and Bettendorf, Iowa. Continental Cement’s primary customers are ready-mixed concrete and concrete products producers and contractors located in
the Midwestern United States. In addition to producing cement, Continental Cement secures, processes and blends hazardous and nonhazardous waste materials primarily for use as
supplemental fuels in the cement manufacturing process. Continental Cement’s primary customers for this service are commercial transportation disposal facilities and petroleum and
chemical manufacturers located in the continental United States.
Continental Cement serves a variety of end-uses in its market, including residential and non-residential, agricultural and public infrastructure projects. For the year ended
December 27, 2014, approximately 78% of Continental Cement’s revenue related to residential and non-residential construction and agriculture and the remaining approximately 22%
related to public infrastructure construction. Management believes exposure to various markets affords greater stability through economic cycles and positions the Company to
capitalize on upside opportunities when recoveries in residential and non-residential construction occur. Continental Cement believes it is a top 25 producer of cement in the United
States by volume and the primary supplier within its local markets.
Business Trends and Conditions
Cement is used in most forms of construction activity. Participants in the cement sector typically are large multinational corporations that offer a wide array of construction
materials and services. Markets are defined in part by the distance materials can be efficiently transported from a cement distribution facility.
Transportation infrastructure projects, driven by both federal and state funding programs, represent a significant share of the U.S. construction materials market. Funding for the
existing federal transportation funding program expired on September 30, 2014 and on August 1, 2014, a Highway Trust Fund extension bill was enacted. This bill provides approximately
$10.8 billion of funding, which is expected to last until May 2015. Any additional funding or successor programs have yet to be approved. With the nation’s infrastructure aging, the
Company expects U.S. infrastructure spending to grow over the long term, and it believes it is well positioned to capitalize on any such increase.
Within many of Continental Cement’s markets, federal, state and local governments have taken actions to maintain or grow highway funding during a time of uncertainty with
respect to federal funding. However, Continental Cement could still be affected by any economic improvement or slowdown, which could vary by local region and market. Continental
Cement’s sales and earnings are sensitive to national, regional and local economic conditions and particularly to cyclical swings in construction spending, especially in the private
sector.
In addition to being subject to cyclical changes in the economy, Continental Cement’s business is also seasonal in nature. Cement is primarily consumed outdoors and therefore
severe weather, seasonal changes and other weather-related conditions can significantly affect sales volumes. Normally, the highest sales and earnings are in the second and third
quarters, and the lowest are in the first and fourth quarters. Winter weather months are generally periods of lower sales as Continental Cement’s customers have fewer active projects.
Periods of heavy rainfall also adversely affect Continental Cement’s customers’ work patterns and therefore demand for the Company’s products. Continental Cement’s working capital
may vary greatly during these peak periods, but generally return to average levels as its operating cycle is completed each fiscal year.
Cement production is a capital-intensive business with variable costs dominated by raw materials and energy required to fuel the kiln. Building new plants is challenging given
the extensive permitting that is required and significant costs. Management believes new plant construction costs in the United States are estimated at $250-300 per ton. Assuming
construction costs of $275 per ton, a 1.25 million ton facility, comparable to Continental Cement’s plant’s potential annual capacity, would cost approximately $343.8 million to construct.
As reported by the PCA in the 2014 United States Cement Industry Annual Yearbook, consumption is down significantly from the industry peak of approximately 141.1 million
tons in 2005 to approximately 90.3 million tons in 2013 because of the decline in
9

Table of Contents
U.S. construction activity. U.S. cement consumption has at times outpaced domestic production capacity with the shortfall being supplied with imports, primarily from China, Canada,
Greece, Mexico and South Korea. The PCA reports that cement imports have declined since their peak of approximately 39.6 million tons in 2006 to approximately 8.0 million tons in 2013,
in a manner indicative of the industry’s general response to the current demand downturn. In addition to the reduction in imports, U.S. excess capacity increased from 5% in 2006 to
approximately 32% in 2013 according to the PCA. U.S. capacity utilization declined from 95% in 2006 to 68% in 2013 according to the PCA. Continental Cement operated above the
industry mean at 85% capacity utilization in 2014 as its markets did not suffer the pronounced demand declines seen in other states. Demand is seasonal in nature with nearly two-thirds
of U.S. consumption occurring between May and October, coinciding with end-market construction activity.
On December 20, 2012, the Environmental Protection Agency signed the PC-MACT which in most instances requires compliance in 2015. The PCA had estimated that 18 plants
could be forced to close due to the inability to meet PC-MACT standards or because the compliance investment required may not be justified on a financial basis. The Continental
Cement plant utilizes alternative fuel (hazardous and non-hazardous) as well as coal, natural gas and petroleum coke and, as a result, is subject to HWC-MACT standards, rather
than PC-MACT standards. Any future costs to comply with the existing HWC-MACT standards are not expected to be material.
Components of Operating Results
Revenue
Continental Cement derives its revenue predominantly by selling cement and from the receipt of waste fuels, which are converted into fuel and used in the manufacturing of
cement. Revenue derived from cement sales is recognized when risks associated with ownership have passed to customers. Typically this occurs when customers haul product from
Continental Cement’s locations or when products are shipped. Product revenue includes sales of cement to customers, net of discounts, allowances and taxes, as applicable. Revenue
from the receipt of waste fuels is classified as service revenue and is based on fees charged for the waste disposal, which are recognized when the waste is accepted.
Operating Costs and Expenses
The key components of Continental Cement’s operating costs and expenses consist of the following:
Cost of revenue (exclusive of items shown separately below)
Cost of revenue consists of all production and delivery costs as well as costs to dispose of waste fuels. Such costs primarily include labor, repair and maintenance, utilities, raw
materials, fuel, transportation and manufacturing overhead. Continental Cement’s cost of revenue is directly affected by fluctuations in commodity energy prices, primarily coal and
natural gas.
General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and personnel costs for Continental Cement’s sales and marketing, administration, finance and accounting,
legal, information systems and human resources employees. Additional expenses include consulting and professional fees, travel, insurance and other corporate expenses.
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion
Continental Cement’s business is capital intensive. Continental Cement carries property, plant and equipment at cost, net of applicable depreciation and depletion, on its balance
sheet. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is computed on a straight-line basis or based on the economic usage over the estimated useful life of the asset. Depletion of
mineral reserves is calculated for proven and probable reserves by the units of production method on a site-by-site basis.
The general range of depreciable lives by fixed asset category, excluding mineral reserves, which are depleted based on the units of production method on a site-by-site basis, is
as follows:
Buildings and improvements
Plant, machinery and equipment
Mobile equipment and barges
Office equipment
Other

7—40 years
20—40 years
15—20 years
3—6 years
2—10 years
10
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Amortization expense is the periodic expense related to Continental Cement’s environmental permits and trade name. The environmental permits are generally amortized on a
straight-line basis over three years. The trade name asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its ten year estimated useful life.
Accretion expense is recorded using the effective interest method and is related to the asset retirement obligations.
Results of Operations
The following discussion of Continental Cement’s results of operations is focused on the key financial measures Continental Cement uses to evaluate the performance of its
business. Operating income and margins are discussed in terms of changes in volume, pricing and mix of revenue source (e.g., bulk or retail sales).
In 2013, Continental Cement changed its fiscal year from a calendar year to a 52-53 week year with each quarter composed of 13 weeks ending on a Saturday, consistent with that
of Summit Materials. Continental Cement’s fiscal year end in 2014 and 2013 was December 27 and December 28, respectively, and was December 31 in 2012. The effect of this change to
Continental Cement’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity was immaterial.
Non-GAAP Performance Measures
Continental Cement evaluates the performance of its business and allocates its resources based on several factors, including a measure it calls Adjusted EBITDA. Continental
Cement defines Adjusted EBITDA as net income before interest expense, and depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion. Accretion is recognized on asset retirement
obligations and reflects the time value of money. Since accretion is similar in nature to interest expense, it is treated consistently with interest expense in determining Adjusted EBITDA.
Adjusted EBITDA reflects an additional way of viewing aspects of Continental Cement’s business that, when viewed with Continental Cement’s results under U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) and the accompanying reconciliations to U.S. GAAP financial measures included in the tables below, may provide a more complete understanding
of factors and trends affecting Continental Cement’s business. However, it should not be construed as being more important than other comparable U.S. GAAP measures and must be
considered in conjunction with U.S. GAAP measures. In addition, non-GAAP financial measures are not standardized; therefore it may not be possible to compare such financial
measures with other companies’ non-GAAP financial measures having the same or similar names. Continental Cement strongly encourages investors to review its consolidated financial
statements in their entirety and not rely on any single financial measure.
Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted EBITDA
The table below reconciles Continental Cement’s net income to Adjusted EBITDA for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012.
(in thousands)

Net income
Interest expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Accretion
Adjusted EBITDA
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2014

2013

2012

$ 8,025
11,678
14,943
109
$34,755

$ 9,865
11,053
11,732
80
$32,730

$ 6,625
12,622
10,449
30
$29,726
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Consolidated Results of Operations
The table below sets forth Continental Cement’s consolidated results for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012.
(in thousands)

Revenue
Cost of revenue (excluding items shown separately below)
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion
Operating income
Other expense (income), net
Interest expense
Net income

2014

2013

2012

$110,064
67,950
7,356
15,052
19,706
3
11,678
$ 8,025

$96,249
55,242
8,367
11,812
20,828
(90)
11,053
$ 9,865

$94,882
58,319
6,706
10,479
19,378
131
12,622
$ 6,625

Year ended December 27, 2014 compared to the year ended December 28, 2013
2014

(in thousands)

Revenue
Operating income
Operating margin
Adjusted EBITDA

$110,064
$ 19,706
17.9%
$ 34,755

2013

$96,249
$20,828
21.6%
$32,730

Variance

$13,815
$ (1,122)

14.4%
(5.4)%

$ 2,025

6.2%

Continental Cement’s revenue increased $13.8 million, or 14.4%, to $110.1 million in the year ended December 27, 2014. The revenue growth was primarily driven by a 7.2%
improvement in pricing due to overall price improvements and a change in cement customer mix away from high-volume sales. Volume increased 9.0% in 2014 due to an increase in
demand from retail customers.
Operating income decreased $1.1 million and operating margin, which Continental Cement defines as operating income as a percentage of total revenue, decreased from 21.6% in
2013 to 17.9% in 2014. The decrease in operating income and operating margin was affected by a $3.2 million increase in depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion, which was a
result of increased capital investment in 2014 and 2013. In the second quarter of 2014, the Company began depreciating the underground mine in connection with the commencement of
production. Also affecting operating income was $0.8 million impairment charge on inventory in 2014. Offsetting this charge, and contributing to the $2.0 million increase in Adjusted
EBITDA was a $1.3 million curtailment benefit recorded in 2014 related to the postretirement healthcare plan and a $1.8 million charge recorded in 2013 for costs to remove a sunken
barge from the waterway.
Year ended December 28, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

2013

Revenue
Operating income
Operating margin
Adjusted EBITDA

$96,249
$20,828
21.6%
$32,730

2012

$94,882
$19,378
20.4%
$29,726

Variance

$1,367
$1,450

1.4%
7.5%

$3,004

10.1%

Continental Cement’s revenue increased $1.4 million, or 1.4%, to $96.2 million in the year ended December 28, 2013. This increase was a result of a $2.1 million increase in revenue
from the receipt and processing of waste fuels, offset in part by a $0.8 million decrease in revenue from cement sales. The $0.8 million decrease in cement revenue was a result of a 4.1%
decrease in tons sold, partially offset by a 3.4% pricing increase.
Operating income increased $1.5 million and operating margin increased from 20.4% in 2012 to 21.6% in 2013. In addition, Adjusted EBITDA increased $3.0 million in 2013. These
profit improvements were due to the increase in the average selling price of cement discussed above and due to an increase in the average tipping fee for the waste received.
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Other Financial Information
Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased $1.6 million to $11.1 million in 2013 from $12.6 million in 2012. The decrease in Continental Cement’s interest expense was due to approximately $0.6
million of interest expense capitalized with the development of the underground mine, a decrease in the average debt balance and a decrease in the weighted average borrowing rate as a
result of Summit Materials’ February 2013 repricing, in which the borrowing rate on its senior secured credit facility was reduced by 1.0%. The favorable pricing adjustment for Summit
Materials had a corresponding effect on Continental Cement’s borrowing rate with Summit Materials. Continental Cement’s average debt balance, calculated using the 2012 year-end
balance and the balance at the end of each quarter in 2013 was $155.9 million, compared to $157.9 million in the comparable prior year periods.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Continental Cement’s primary sources of liquidity include cash provided by its operations and amounts available for borrowing from Summit Materials. Continental Cement
participates in Summit Material’s centralized banking system, through which excess funds are swept to Summit Materials at the end of each business day and Continental Cement’s
accounts are funded each business day from the sweep account for amounts presented to Continental Cement’s accounts for payment. As a result, Continental Cement’s cash balance
is nominal and is expected to be nominal going forward.
Given the seasonality of its business, Continental Cement typically experiences significant fluctuations in working capital needs and balances throughout the year with sales
peaking in the summer and fall months. Despite the seasonality of its sales, Continental Cement produces cement throughout the year with the exception of scheduled plant
maintenance during the first quarter and late summer. Continental Cement believes it has sufficient financial resources from its liquidity sources to fund its business and operations,
including contractual obligations, capital expenditures and debt service obligations for at least the next twelve months. There were no restricted cash balances as of December 27, 2014
or December 28, 2013.
Continental Cement’s Long-term Debt
Please refer to note 6 to the consolidated audited financial statements included elsewhere in this report for detailed information on Continental Cement’s indebtedness and
scheduled maturities of long-term debt due to Summit Materials. At December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, there was $154.6 million and $155.6 million, respectively, of debt
outstanding due to Summit Materials. The interest rate in effect as of and for the year ended December 27, 2014 was 3.7%.
The terms of the agreements governing Summit Materials’ debt limit certain transactions of its subsidiaries, including those of Continental Cement, such as Continental Cement’s
ability to incur additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred shares, pay dividends to its noncontrolling members, redeem stock or make other distributions, make certain
investments, sell or transfer certain assets, create liens, consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets or enter into certain transactions with
affiliates.
Cash Flows
The following table summarizes Continental Cement’s net cash provided by or used for operating, investing and financing activities and Continental Cement’s capital
expenditures for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Cash paid for capital expenditures

2014

2013

2012

$ 17,126
(17,346)
213
$(15,959)

$ 18,589
(18,473)
(706)
$(25,594)

$ 22,379
(23,035)
1,200
$(12,805)

Operating activities
For the year ended 2014, cash provided by operating activities was $17.1 million, driven by net income of $8.0 million, net of $15.0 million of depreciation, depletion, amortization
and accretion expense and a $1.7 million decrease in inventory, offset by a
$2.5 million increase in accounts receivable and a $3.1 million reduction of accounts payable and accrued expenses. These working capital
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fluctuations resulted from the Company’s fourth quarter sales in 2014 exceeding those in the fourth quarter 2013, which generated additional accounts receivable and lower inventory
levels. In 2014, the Company made the final interest payment on a related party note for $0.7 million.
For the year ended 2013, cash provided by operating activities was $18.6 million, driven by net income of $9.9 million, net of $11.8 million of depreciation, depletion, amortization
and accretion expense, offset by a $3.3 million increase in inventory. Sales volume in 2013 was 4.1% less than 2012 resulting in elevated inventory levels at the end of 2013, as compared
to 2012.
For the year ended 2012, cash provided by operating activities was $22.4 million, driven by net income of $6.6 million, net of $10.5 million of depreciation, depletion, amortization
and accretion expense, as well as a $2.8 million reduction in inventory. The reduction in inventory was driven by a 11.1% increase in cement tons sold.
Investing activities
For the year ended 2014, cash used for investing activities was $17.3 million related to approximately $16.0 million in capital investments and $1.4 million in purchases of spare
parts for the cement plant that when placed in service will be included in property, plant and equipment. The capital expenditures included enhancement costs incurred during the
cement plant’s annual scheduled winter shutdown, as well as continued development of an underground mine to extract limestone on Continental Cement’s Hannibal, Missouri property
where its cement plant is located ($6.3 million).
For the year ended 2013, cash used for investing activities was $18.5 million related primarily to $25.6 million of capital investments partially offset by $7.1 million of net loan
settlements to affiliates. The capital expenditures were primarily for continued development of the underground mine ($15.3 million), a storage dome in St. Louis, Missouri ($2.8 million),
which is being used to store cement product, and enhancement costs incurred during the cement plant’s annual scheduled shutdowns.
For the year ended 2012, cash used for investing activities was $23.0 million from $10.2 million of net loans to affiliates and $12.8 million for capital investments. Due to strong
cash flow provided by operations in 2012, Continental Cement was a net lender to Continental Cement’s sister companies. Continental Cement also invested $5.0 million in the
development of the underground mine.
Financing activities
For the years ended 2014, 2013 and 2012, cash provided by and used for financing activities was $0.2 million, ($0.7) million and $1.2 million, respectively, reflective of net
borrowing on long-term debt.
Cash paid for capital expenditures
Continental Cement expended approximately $16.0 million on capital investments in 2014 compared to $25.6 million in 2013. A significant portion of the capital expenditures in
2014 related to developing an underground mine to extract limestone on Continental Cement’s Hannibal, Missouri property where its cement plant is located. The underground mine was
completed in 2014. Continental Cement spent $6.3 million on the underground mine development in 2014, as compared to $15.3 million in 2013.
Continental Cement expended approximately $25.6 million in capital expenditures in 2013 compared to $12.8 million in 2012. A significant portion of the increase in capital
expenditures in 2013 related to developing the underground. The underground mine was completed in 2014. Continental Cement spent $15.3 million on the underground mine
development in 2013, as compared to
$5.0 million in 2012.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table presents, as of December 27, 2014, Continental Cement’s obligations and commitments to make future payments under contracts and contingent
commitments (in thousands):

Short term borrowings and long-term debt, including current portion
Capital lease obligations
Operating lease obligations
Interest payments (1)
Pensions and other post-retirement plans (2)
Asset retirement obligation payments
Total contractual obligations (3)
(1)
(2)
(3)

Total

2015

$154,591
2,135
553
56,755
11,098
1,426
$226,558

$ 1,273
334
132
12,667
2,104
—
$16,510

2016-2017

2018-2019

Thereafter

$

$

$

$

2,036
656
194
22,788
2,862
1,067
29,603

90,958
656
149
18,102
1,785
—
$ 111,650

$

60,324
489
78
3,198
4,347
359
68,795

Future interest payments were calculated using the applicable floating rates charged by Summit Materials in effect as of December 27, 2014 and may differ from actual results.
Amounts represent estimated future payments to fund Continental Cement’s defined benefit plans.
Any future payouts on the redeemable noncontrolling interest are excluded from total contractual obligations as the final settlement amount, timing of settlement and form of
payment in either cash or equity has not been determined. The redemption value is currently estimated to be approximately $65.1 million.

Commitments and Contingencies
In the normal course of business, Continental Cement has commitments, lawsuits, claims and contingent liabilities. In the opinion of Continental Cement’s management, the
ultimate disposition of currently pending matters will not have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
In February 2011, the Company incurred a property loss related to a sunken barge with cement product aboard. In the year ended December 28, 2013, the Company recognized
$0.8 million of charges for lost product aboard the barge and costs to remove the barge from the waterway. As of December 27, 2014, $0.4 million is included in accrued expenses as the
Company’s best estimate of the remaining costs to remove the barge.
The Company is obligated under various firm purchase commitments for certain raw materials and services that are in the ordinary course of business, which generally have
terms less than one year. Management does not expect any significant changes in the market value of these goods and services during the commitment period that would have a
material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 27, 2014, Continental Cement had no material off-balance sheet arrangements.
New Accounting Standards
In May 2014, the FASB issued a new accounting standard to improve and converge the financial reporting requirements for revenue from contracts with customers. Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, prescribes a five-step model for revenue recognition that will replace most existing revenue
recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU will supersede nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and provides that an entity recognize revenue when it
transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This
update also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments
and changes in judgments, and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. ASU No. 2014-09 allows for either full retrospective or modified retrospective
adoption and will become effective for us in the first quarter of 2017. Early adoption is prohibited. Management is currently assessing the effect that the adoption of this standard will
have on the consolidated financial statements.
Critical Accounting Policies
Continental Cement’s management’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations is based on its consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reported period.
On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates, including those related to the allowance for doubtful accounts, inventories, goodwill, asset retirement obligations and
the redeemable members’ interest. Continental Cement bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and various other factors that it believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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Revenue Recognition
Revenue for cement sales is recognized when evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, title passes, which is generally when the product is shipped, and
collection is reasonably assured. Cement sales are recorded net of discounts, allowances and sales taxes, as applicable. The Company records freight revenue on a net basis together
with freight costs within cost of sales.
Revenue from the receipt of waste fuels is recognized when the waste is accepted and a corresponding liability is recognized for the costs to process the waste into fuel for the
manufacturing of cement or to ship the waste offsite for disposal in accordance with applicable regulations.
Goodwill and Goodwill Impairment
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and in interim periods if certain events occur indicating that the carrying amounts may be impaired. The impairment evaluation
involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions and considerable management judgment. Continental Cement’s judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators
and future cash flows related to goodwill are based on operational performance of its business, market conditions and other factors. Although there are inherent uncertainties in this
assessment process, the estimates and assumptions management uses, including estimates of future cash flows, volumes, market penetration and discount rates, are consistent with its
internal planning. The estimated future cash flows are derived from internal operating budgets and forecasts for long-term demand and pricing in Continental Cement’s industry and
market. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, Continental Cement may be required to record an impairment charge on all or a portion of its goodwill.
Management cannot predict the occurrence of future impairment-triggering events nor the effect such events might have on its reported values. Future events could cause management
to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that goodwill is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have an adverse effect on Continental Cement’s financial position and
results of operations.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment by first assessing qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is
more likely than not (more than 50%) that the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, as a result of the qualitative assessment, it is determined that an
impairment is more likely than not, the entity is then required to perform the two-step quantitative impairment test, otherwise further analysis is not required. An entity also may elect not
to perform the qualitative assessment and, instead, proceed directly to the two-step quantitative impairment test. The ultimate outcome of the goodwill impairment review for a reporting
unit should be the same whether an entity chooses to perform the qualitative assessment or proceeds directly to the two-step quantitative impairment test.
Under the two-step quantitative impairment test, the evaluation of impairment involves comparing the current fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value, including
goodwill. Continental Cement uses a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model to estimate the current fair value of its reporting unit when testing for impairment, as Continental Cement’s
management believes forecasted cash flows are the best indicator of such fair value. A number of significant assumptions and estimates are involved in the application of the DCF
model to forecast operating cash flows, including macroeconomic trends in the private construction and public infrastructure industries, its success in securing future sales and the
appropriate interest rate used to discount the projected cash flows. This discounted cash flow analysis is corroborated by “top-down” analyses, including a market assessment of
Continental Cement’s enterprise value.
During the fourth quarter of 2014, in conjunction with management’s annual review of goodwill on the first day of the fourth quarter, management performed the qualitative
assessment for Continental Cement’s reporting unit for which Continental Cement’s senior management regularly reviews the operating results.
As a result of this analysis, Continental Cement determined that it is more likely than not that the fair value of Continental Cement is greater than its carrying value. Continental
Cement recorded no goodwill impairment charges in the current year or in previous years.
As of December 27, 2014, we determined that no events or circumstances since the first day of the fourth quarter through December 27, 2014 indicated that a further assessment
was necessary.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Excluding Goodwill
Long-lived assets are material to Continental Cement’s total assets. As of December 27, 2014, property, plant and equipment, net, represented 83.3% of total assets. Continental
Cement evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets, including intangible assets subject to amortization, when events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Such indicators may include deterioration in general economic conditions, negative developments in equity and credit markets, adverse changes in the
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markets in which an entity operates, increases in input costs that have a negative effect on earnings and cash flows or a trend of negative or declining cash flows over multiple periods,
among others. A one year increase or decrease in average useful lives of plant and equipment would have affected depreciation expense by ($0.6) million or $0.6 million, respectively, in
2014. An impairment charge could be material to Continental Cement’s financial condition and results of operations. The carrying value of long-lived assets is considered impaired when
the estimated undiscounted cash flows from such assets are less than their carrying value. In that event, Continental Cement would recognize a loss equal to the amount by which the
carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived assets.
Fair value is determined by primarily using a discounted cash flow methodology that requires the use of estimates and considerable management judgment and long-term
assumptions. Continental Cement’s estimate of future cash flows is based on historical experience and assumptions of future trends, which may be different from actual results. There
were no material long-lived asset impairments during the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 or December 31, 2012 nor were there any changes to the useful lives of
assets having a material effect on Continental Cement’s financial condition and results of operations.
ITEM 7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Continental Cement is exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions that are entered into in the normal course of business. Continental Cement’s operations are highly
dependent upon the interest rate-sensitive construction industry as well as the general economic environment. Consequently, these marketplaces could experience lower levels of
economic activity in an environment of rising interest rates or escalating costs.
Continental Cement’s management has considered the current economic environment and its potential effect to Continental Cement’s business. Demand for cement products,
particularly in the nonresidential and residential construction markets, could decline if companies and consumers are unable to obtain financing for construction projects or if the
economic recession causes delays or cancellations to capital projects. Additionally, declining tax revenue and state budget deficits could negatively affected states’ abilities to finance
infrastructure construction projects.
Interest Rate Risk
Continental Cement sponsors two non-contributory defined benefit pension plans for hourly and salaried employees, as well as healthcare and life insurance benefits for certain
eligible retired employees. As of January, 2012, the pension and postretirement plans were frozen to new entrants. Effective January 2014, the pension plan for hourly employees was
frozen to new participants and the healthcare and life insurance benefit plan was amended to eliminate all future retiree health and life coverage for the remaining union employees.
Continental Cement’s results of operations are affected by its net periodic benefit cost from these plans, which was $0.5 million in 2014, exclusive of a $1.3 million curtailment benefit.
Assumptions that affect this expense include the discount rate and, for the pension plans only, the expected long-term rate of return on assets. Therefore, Continental Cement has
interest rate risk associated with these factors. A one percentage-point increase or decrease in assumed health care cost trend rates would have affected the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligations by $1.3 million or $(1.1) million, respectively, at December 27, 2014.
Commodity and Energy Price Risk
Continental Cement is subject to commodity price risk with respect to price changes in energy, including fossil fuels, such as natural gas and diesel for cement production
activities.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Member
of Summit Materials, LLC:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. and subsidiary as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in redeemable members’ interest and member’s interest for the years ended December 27, 2014,
December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012. The consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. and
subsidiary as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
/s/ KPMG LLP
McLean, Virginia
February 22, 2015
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CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C.
AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013
(In thousands, except unit amounts)
2014

2013

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Due from Summit Materials
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets

$

Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities, Redeemable Members’ Interest and Member’s Interest
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt due to Summit Materials
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt due to Summit Materials
Pension and post-retirement benefit obligations
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (see note 9)
Redeemable members’ interest (100,000,000 Class B units issued and authorized)
Member’s interest:
Member’s equity (100 Class A units issued and authorized)
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total member’s interest
Total liabilities, redeemable members’ interest and member’s interest

2
9,469
4,095
8,696
509
22,771

306,204
24,096
12,576
$ 364,112

$

$

1,273
7,599
10,926
19,798
153,318
22,352
2,435
197,903

135,242
13,961
(12,889)
136,314
$ 368,760

19

9
7,353
2,990
10,402
482
21,236

307,286
24,096
14,607
$ 368,760

34,543

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

1,018
10,165
9,997
21,180
154,590
19,457
850
196,077
23,450

135,180
17,029
(7,624)
144,585
$ 364,112

Table of Contents
CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C.
AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Revenue:
Revenue from third parties:
Product
Service
Revenue from related parties:
Product
Total revenue
Cost of revenue (excluding items shown separately below):
Product
Service
Total cost of revenue
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion
Operating income
Other expense (income), net
Interest expense
Net income

2014

2013

2012

$ 75,627
15,662

$ 64,181
15,490

$ 65,213
13,366

18,775
110,064

16,578
96,249

16,303
94,882

58,716
9,234
67,950
7,356
15,052
19,706
3
11,678
$ 8,025

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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46,137
9,105
55,242
8,367
11,812
20,828
(90)
11,053
$ 9,865

49,541
8,778
58,319
6,706
10,479
19,378
131
12,622
$ 6,625
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CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C.
AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Net income
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Postretirement curtailment adjustment
Postretirement liability adjustment
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2014

2013

2012

$ 8,025

$ 9,865

$ 6,625

(1,346)
(3,919)
(5,265)
$ 2,760

—
4,407
4,407
$14,272

—
(3,648)
(3,648)
$ 2,977

Table of Contents
CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C.
AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion
Other
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Other assets
(Decrease) increase in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Pension and post-retirement benefit obligations
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Loans to affiliates
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Other
Net cash used for investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowing
Principal payments on long-term debt
Book overdraft
Net payments to Summit Materials
Other
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash – beginning of period
Cash – end of period
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash interest paid
Non cash financing activties:
Proceeds on borrowings due to Summit Materials
Repayment by Summit Materials of long-term debt and accrued interest
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2014

2013

$ 8,025

$ 9,865

15,031
1,244

11,812
801

10,479
(78)

(2,456)
1,705
(27)
(892)

2,695
(3,329)
333
(1,304)

(1,924)
2,841
58
308

(1,032)
(2,102)
(2,370)
—
17,126

2,093
(1,574)
(1,704)
(1,099)
18,589

(907)
6,685
(1,368)
(340)
22,379

—
(15,959)
(1,387)
(17,346)

7,118
(25,594)
3
(18,473)

(10,220)
(12,805)
(10)
(23,035)

—
(1,048)
2,820
(1,559)
—
213
(7)
9
$
2

$

—
(750)
44
—
—
(706)
(590)
599
9

7,000
(5,783)
—
—
(17)
1,200
544
55
$
599

$ 11,728

$ 11,488

$

$

$

$ 156,842
(156,842)

—
—

—
—

2012

$

6,625

7,353
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CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C.
AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Redeemable Members’ Interest and Member’s Interest
Years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Balance – December 31, 2011
Accretion
Other comprehensive loss
Net income
Share-based compensation
Balance – December 31, 2012
Accretion
Other comprehensive income
Net income
Share-based compensation
Balance – December 28, 2013
Accretion
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Share-based compensation
Balance – December 27, 2014
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Member’s
equity

Retained
earnings

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
loss

$ 135,056
—
—
—
62
135,118
—
—
—
62
135,180
—
—
—
62
$ 135,242

$

$

1,739
(600)
—
6,625
—
7,764
(600)
—
9,865
—
17,029
(11,093)
8,025
—
—
$ 13,961

$

(8,383)
—
(3,648)
—
—
(12,031)
—
4,407
—
—
(7,624)
—
—
(5,265)
—
(12,889)

Total
member’s
interest

Redeemable
members’
interest

$ 128,412
(600)
(3,648)
6,625
62
130,851
(600)
4,407
9,865
62
144,585
(11,093)
8,025
(5,265)
62
$ 136,314

$

$

22,250
600
—
—
—
22,850
600
—
—
—
23,450
11,093
—
—
—
34,543
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tables in thousands)
(1)

Summary of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Business Activities and Organization
Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. ( “Continental Cement”) produces Portland cement at its plant located in Hannibal, Missouri. Cement distribution terminals are
maintained in Hannibal and St. Louis, Missouri and Bettendorf, Iowa. Continental Cement’s primary customers are ready-mixed concrete and concrete products producers
and contractors located in the Midwestern United States.
Green America Recycling, L.L.C. (“GAR”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Continental Cement, is engaged in the business of securing, processing and blending hazardous
and nonhazardous waste materials primarily for use as supplemental fuels in Continental Cement’s manufacturing process. GAR’s primary customers are commercial
transportation disposal facilities and petroleum and chemical manufacturers located in the continental United States.
Continental Cement, a Delaware limited liability company, is governed by the Amended and Restated Continental Cement Limited Liability Company Agreement (as
amended, the “LLC Agreement”). As such, liability of the Continental Cement’s members is generally limited to the amount of their net investment in Continental Cement.
Continental Cement is an indirect non–wholly owned subsidiary of Summit Materials, LLC (“Summit Materials”).
In 2013, Continental Cement changed its fiscal year from a calendar year to a 52-53 week year with each quarter composed of 13 weeks ending on a Saturday, consistent
with that of Summit Materials. Continental Cement’s fiscal year end in 2014 and 2013 was December 27 and December 28, respectively, compared to the calendar year
ended December 31 in 2012. The effect of this change to Continental Cement’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity was immaterial.

(b)

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Continental Cement and its wholly owned subsidiary, GAR (collectively the “Company”). All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

(c)

Use of Estimates
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which require
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and the
underlying assumptions affect the amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities and reported amounts of expenses. Such
estimates include the valuation of accounts receivable, inventories, goodwill, intangible and other long-lived assets, pension and other postretirement obligations, asset
retirement obligations and the redeemable members’ interest. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and
other factors, including the current economic environment. Management adjusts such estimates and assumptions when circumstances dictate. As future events and their
effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from estimates made. Changes in estimates, including those resulting from continuing
changes in the economic environment, will be reflected in the Company’s consolidated financial statements when the change in estimate occurs.

(d)

Business and Credit Concentrations
The Company’s customers are primarily located in Missouri, Iowa and Illinois. The Company’s accounts receivable balances are due primarily from ready-mixed concrete
and concrete products producers and contractors within this area. Collection of these accounts is therefore dependent on the economic conditions of the area. However,
credit granted within the Company’s trade area has been granted to a wide variety of customers, and management does not believe that any significant concentrations of
credit exist with respect to individual customers or groups of customers who are engaged in similar activities that would be similarly affected by changes in economic or
other conditions. The Company had approximately 15%, 16% and 13%, of cement sales with companies owned by a certain minority owner of the Company for the years
ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
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(e)

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollected amounts
through a charge to earnings and a credit to the allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of the status of individual accounts. In establishing the
allowance, management considers historical losses adjusted to take into account current market conditions and customers’ financial condition, the amount of receivables
in dispute, the current receivables aging and current payment terms. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are
written off through a charge to the allowance for doubtful accounts. Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts have not been material to the consolidated financial
statements.

(f)

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from the sale of cement is recognized when evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, title passes, which is generally when the product
is shipped, and collection is reasonably assured. Cement sales are recorded net of discounts, allowances and sales taxes, as applicable. The Company records freight
revenue on a net basis together with freight costs within cost of sales.
Revenue from the receipt of waste fuels is recognized when the waste is accepted and a corresponding liability is recognized for the costs to process the waste into fuel
for the manufacturing of cement or to ship the waste offsite for disposal in accordance with applicable regulations.

(g)

Inventories
Inventories of raw materials, work in process and finished goods are carried at the lower of cost (determined using the average cost method) or market. If items become
obsolete or otherwise unusable, they will be charged to costs of production when that determination is made by management.

(h)

Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and depletion. Expenditures for additions and improvements that significantly add to
the productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Repair and maintenance costs that do not substantially expand productive capacity or extend
the life of property, plant and equipment are expensed as incurred.
Upon disposal of an asset, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the Company’s accounts and any gain or loss is included in general and
administrative expenses.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is computed on a straight-line basis. These estimated useful lives are as follows:
Buildings and improvements
Plant, machinery and equipment
Mobile equipment and barges
Office equipment
Other

7—40 years
20—40 years
15—20 years
3—6 years
2—10 years

Depletion of mineral reserves is calculated over proven and probable reserves by the units of production method on a site-by-site basis.
Property, plant and equipment is tested for impairment at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets. As a
result, the property, plant and equipment impairment test may be at a significantly lower level than the level at which goodwill is tested for impairment. The lowest level of
largely independent identifiable cash flows is at the cement operations. Assets are assessed for impairment charges when identified for disposition. Projected losses from
disposition are recognized in the period in which they become estimable, which may be in advance of the actual disposition.
The Company reviews the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable, considering the estimated future cash flows from its use and eventual disposition. Such indicators may include, among others, deterioration in
general economic conditions, negative developments in equity and credit markets, adverse changes in the markets in which an entity operates, increases in input costs
that have a negative effect on earnings and cash flows or a trend of negative or declining cash flows over multiple periods.
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(i)

Accrued Mining Reclamation
The Company’s mining reclamation obligations are based on management’s estimate of future cost requirements to reclaim property at quarry sites. Estimates of these
obligations have been developed based on management’s interpretation of current requirements and proposed regulatory changes and are intended to approximate fair
value. The obligations were estimated based on reclamation costs at the time of the estimate, inflated until the expected time of payment using an inflation rate of 2.5%,
and then discounted back to present value using a risk-free rate on obligations of similar maturity, adjusted to reflect the Company’s credit rating. Changes in the creditadjusted, risk-free rate do not change recorded liabilities. However, subsequent increases in the recognized obligations are measured using a current credit-adjusted, riskfree rate. Decreases in the recognized obligations are measured at the initial credit-adjusted, risk-free rate.
Significant changes in inflation rates or the amount or timing of future cost estimates typically result in both (1) a current adjustment to the recorded liability (and
corresponding adjustment to the asset) and (2) a change in accretion of the liability and depreciation of the asset to be recorded prospectively over the remaining
capacity of the unmined quarry.

(j)

Goodwill
Goodwill is the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired and was $24.1 million as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013. Goodwill is
not amortized, but is tested annually for impairment and whenever events or circumstances change that would make it more likely than not that an impairment may have
occurred.
The Company performs an annual impairment analysis as of the first day of the fourth quarter of each fiscal year for its one reporting unit. The goodwill impairment test
first uses a qualitative approach to determine whether it is more likely than not that the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, as a
result of the qualitative assessment, it is determined that an impairment is more likely than not, the two-step quantitative impairment test is then performed, otherwise
further analysis is not required. The two-step quantitative impairment test compares the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value. Management estimates the
fair value of the reporting unit primarily based on the discounted projected cash flows of the underlying operations. A number of significant assumptions and estimates
are required to forecast operating cash flows, including macroeconomic trends in the private construction and public infrastructure industries, expected success in
securing future sales and the appropriate interest rate used to discount the projected cash flows. During the 2014 qualitative review of goodwill, management concluded
that it was more likely than not that the estimated fair value of the Company exceeded its carrying value and during the 2013 quantitative review of goodwill, management
concluded that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit was substantially in excess of its carrying value, resulting in no indication of impairment. The Company has
recorded no goodwill impairment charges to date.

(k)

Income Taxes
Continental Cement and GAR are limited liability companies that pass their tax attributes for federal and state tax purposes to their members and are generally not subject
to federal or state income tax.

(l)

Reclassifications
Certain amounts have been reclassified in prior periods to conform to the presentation in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 27,
2014.
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(2)

Accounts Receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net consisted of the following as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013:

Trade accounts receivable from unaffiliated entities
Trade accounts receivable from related parties
Accounts receivable
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts
Accounts receivable, net

(3)

2014

2013

$8,366
1,470
9,836
(367)
$9,469

$6,961
422
7,383
(30)
$7,353

Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013:
2014

Raw materials
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Total inventories

(4)

$1,099
1,801
5,796
$8,696

2013

$

972
2,623
6,807
$10,402

Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment, net consisted of the following as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013:

Land (mineral bearing) and asset retirement costs
Land (non-mineral bearing)
Buildings and improvements
Plants, machinery and equipment
Mobile equipment and barges
Office equipment
Construction in progress
Other
Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization
Property, plant and equipment, net

2014

2013

$ 32,195
4,605
40,962
266,310
8,244
2,420
1,611
1,721
358,068
(50,782)
$307,286

$ 16,524
4,605
40,795
247,681
8,060
1,845
23,394
—
342,904
(36,700)
$306,204

The Company completed development of an underground mine in 2014 through which over 200 years of limestone reserves may be accessed. Limestone is a raw material used in
the production of cement. The $15.6 million of underground mine development costs included in construction in progress as of December 28, 2013 were included in land (mineral
bearing) as of December 27, 2014. Capitalized costs for mine development include costs incurred for site preparation and development of the mine.
Depreciation and depletion expense of property, plant and equipment was $14.8 million, $11.6 million and $10.3 million, for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013
and December 31, 2012, respectively.
Property, plant and equipment at December 27, 2014 included $1.7 million of capital leases for certain equipment with accumulated amortization of approximately $22 thousand.
The equipment leases generally have terms of less than five years.
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Approximately $0.2 million of the future obligations associated with the capital leases are included in accrued expenses and the present value of the remaining capital lease
payments is included in other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.
(5)

Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisted of the following as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013:

Interest due to Summit Materials
Interest due to noncontrolling member
Postretirement benefits other than pensions, current portion
Bonus liability
Payroll, insurance and benefits
Costs to remove barge from waterway
Professional fees
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Other
Total

(6)

2014

2013

$ 3,804
—
1,041
903
911
380
70
215
3,602
$10,926

$3,848
723
1,268
884
758
880
340
—
1,296
$9,997

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt due to Summit Materials, including the current portion of long-term debt, was $154.6 million and
$155.6 million as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, respectively. Interest costs incurred were $11.1 million in each of the years ended December 27, 2014 and
December 28, 2013 and $12.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2012. The interest rate in effect at December 27, 2014 was 3.7%.
The terms of the agreements governing Summit Materials’ debt limit certain transactions of its subsidiaries, including those of the Company, such as its ability to incur additional
indebtedness or issue certain preferred shares, pay dividends to noncontrolling members, redeem stock or make other distributions, make certain investments, sell or transfer
certain assets, create liens, consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets, enter into certain transactions with affiliates.
Continental Cement is named as a guarantor of Summit Materials’ debt, for which it has pledged substantially all of its assets as collateral. Continental Cement provides a joint
and several, full and unconditional guarantee of Summit Materials’ debt. Summit Materials is and has been current on all required principal and interest payments. As of
December 27, 2014, approximately $94.3 million and $60.3 million of the Company’s long-term debt due to Summit Materials represented the amount of Summit Materials’ debt
under a senior secured credit facility and senior notes, respectively, that has been allocated to the Company.
Future maturities of long-term debt due to Summit Materials as of December 27, 2014 are as follows:
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter
Total

(7)

1,273
1,018
1,018
764
90,194
60,324
$ 154,591

Members’ Interest
Business affairs of the Company are managed by a board of directors (the “Board”) composed of up to seven Directors. As of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, Summit
Materials was entitled to appoint four directors to the Board and members representing the noncontrolling interest were entitled to appoint three directors to the Board. Any
director may be removed from the Board with or without cause at any time by the directors entitled to appoint such Director. The LLC Agreement provides that resolutions of the
Board generally require the consent of at least a majority of the Directors.
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Summit Materials indirectly owns 100 Class A Units of Continental Cement, which represent an approximately 70% economic interest in the Company and have a preference in
liquidation to the Class B Units. The non-contolling members own 100,000,000 Class B Units, which represent an approximately 30% economic interest.
Continental Cement’s Class A Units include a cumulative distribution preference which requires, to the extent distributions are authorized by its Board of Directors, that
Continental Cement Class A Units receive, prior to any distributions to the Class B Unitholders (the “Class B Unitholders”), a priority return of 11% accruing daily and
compounding annually on each anniversary of the date of issuance to Class A Unitholders. To the extent the priority return is not made in a given year, the amount of the
priority return will increase the liquidation preference of the Class A Units up to an 80% allowable sharing percentage in distributions and liquidation proceeds. Summit Materials
indirectly holds all the Class A Units.
The LLC Agreement provides Summit Materials with a call right that allows it to require Continental Cement to call the Class B Units at a strike price that approximates fair value.
The call right is exercisable after May 2016 either in anticipation of an initial public offering of Summit Materials or if an initial public offering of Summit Materials has already
occurred. The Class B Unitholders also have a put right that allows them to put the Class B Units to Continental Cement at a strike price that approximates fair value. The put
right is exercisable prior to May 2016 upon a sale of control of Summit Materials or at any time after May 2016. The LLC Agreement also includes transfer restrictions that
prohibit the Class B Unitholders from transferring their units to third parties without the consent of the board of directors of Continental Cement.
Because the Class B Units can be put to Continental Cement in the future based on the passage of time, which can be accelerated upon the occurrence of a contingent event,
their interests are classified in temporary equity. The redemption value is based upon the estimated fair value of the Company, which is valued using Level 3 inputs. The
Company has elected to accrete changes in the redemption value of the redeemable interest over the period from the date of issuance to the earliest anticipated redemption date
of the instrument, which was May 2016 as of December 27, 2014, using an interest method. The accretion is an adjustment to the consolidated retained earnings and increased in
the third quarter of 2014 consistent with the redemption value increase to an estimated $65.1 million. During 2014, the Company performed an indirect valuation of the Class B
Units. The valuation was based on unobservable, or Level 3, inputs, including an assumption on the timing of settlement and projected cash flows. A significant change in these
inputs could result in a material increase, or decrease, in the redemption value of the Class B Units.
Pursuant to the terms of the LLC Agreement, the Class B Unitholders have the right to elect to rollover their interests in Continental Cement in connection with an initial public
offering of Summit Materials Holdings, L.P.(“Summit Holdings”), an indirect parent of Summit Materials, or a parent entity of Summit Holdings. In December 2014, Summit
Holdings entered into a contribution and purchase agreement with the Class B Unitholders for a value consistent with the redemption value referenced above. Concurrently with
the consummation of an initial public offering of Summit Materials, Inc., which will become the direct parent of Summit Holdings upon consummation of the proposed initial
public offering, the Class B Unitholders will contribute 28,571,429 of the Class B Units of Continental Cement in exchange for units of Summit Owner Holdco LLC, an entity that
as a result of the transactions contemplated by the contribution and purchase agreement, will hold a number of shares of Class A common stock of Summit Materials, Inc. that is
equal to 1.469496% of the number of outstanding Summit Holdings LP units immediately prior to giving effect to any LP units issued in connection with an initial public offering
and the Class B Unitholders will deliver the remaining 71,428,571 Class B Units of Continental Cement to Summit Holdings in exchange for a payment to be made by Summit
Holdings in the amount of $35.0 million in cash and $15.0 million aggregate principal amount of non-interest bearing notes that will be payable in six aggregate annual
installments of $2.5 million, beginning on the first anniversary of the closing of the initial public offering.
(8)

Employee Benefit Plans
Deferred Compensation Plan
The Company sponsors an Employee 401(k) Savings Plan for all salaried employees and certain union employees. The plan provides for various required and discretionary
Company matches of employees’ eligible compensation contributed to the plan and a discretionary profit sharing contribution as determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s contributions to the plan were $0.6 million, $0.5 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31,
2012, respectively.
Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits
Continental Cement sponsors two noncontributory defined benefit pension plans for hourly and salaried employees. The plans are closed to new participants and benefits are
frozen. Pension benefits for eligible hourly employees are based on a monthly pension factor for each year of credited service. Pension benefits for eligible salaried employees
are generally based on years of service and average eligible compensation.
Continental Cement also sponsors unfunded healthcare and life insurance benefits plans for certain eligible retired employees. Effective January 1, 2014, the plan was amended to
eliminate all future retiree health and life coverage for employees.
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The funded status of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans is recognized in the consolidated balance sheets as the difference between the fair value of plan assets
and the benefit obligations. For defined benefit pension plans, the benefit obligation is the projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) and for the healthcare and life insurance benefits
plans, the benefit obligation is the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (“APBO”). The PBO represents the actuarial present value of benefits expected to be paid upon
retirement based on estimated future compensation levels. However, since the plans’ participants are not subject to future compensation increases, the plans’ PBO equals the
APBO. The APBO represents the actuarial present value of postretirement benefits attributed to employee services already rendered. The fair value of plan assets represents the
current market value of assets held by an irrevocable trust fund for the sole benefit of participants. The measurement of the benefit obligations are based on the Company’s
estimates and actuarial valuations. These valuations reflect the terms of the plan and use participant-specific information, such as compensation, age and years of service, as
well as certain assumptions that require significant judgment, including estimates of discount rates, expected return on plan assets, rate of compensation increases, interestcrediting rates and mortality rates.
The Company uses its fiscal year-end as the measurement date for its defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans.
Obligations and Funded Status—The following information is as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 and for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013
and December 29, 2012:
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Pension
benefits

Change in benefit obligations:
Beginning of period
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain)
Special termination benefits
Change in plan provision
Benefits paid
End of period
Change in fair value of plan assets:
Beginning of period
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
End of period
Funded status of plans
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Liability recognized
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Net actuarial loss
Prior service cost
Total amount recognized

2014
Healthcare
& Life Ins.

Pension
benefits

2013
Healthcare
& Life Ins.

$ 25,644
75
1,081
3,798
—
—
(1,689)
28,909

$

14,155
106
493
1,992
—
(2,553)
(837)
13,356

$ 28,674
295
963
(2,674)
—
—
(1,614)
25,644

$

15,810
236
513
(1,048)
39
—
(1,395)
14,155

$ 19,074
526
961
(1,689)
18,872
$(10,037)

$

—
—
837
(837)
—
(13,356)

$ 17,863
1,512
1,313
(1,614)
19,074
$ (6,570)

$

—
—
1,395
(1,395)
—
(14,155)

$

—
(10,037)
$(10,037)

$

(1,041)
(12,315)
(13,356)

$

—
(6,570)
$ (6,570)

$

$ 9,365
—
$ 9,365

$

$ 4,831
—
$ 4,831

$

$

$

$

5,904
(2,380)
3,524

$

$

$

(1,268)
(12,887)
(14,155)
4,139
(1,346)
2,793

The amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”) is the actuarial loss, which has not yet been recognized in periodic benefit cost. At December 27,
2014, the actuarial loss expected to be amortized from AOCI to periodic benefit cost in 2015 is $0.3 million and $0.1 million for the pension and postretirement obligations.
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Pension
benefits

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive loss (income):
Net actuarial gain (loss)
Prior service cost
Amortization of prior year service cost
Curtailment benefit
Amortization of gain
Total amount recognized
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of loss
Expected return on plan assets
Curtailment benefits
Special termination benefits
Amortization of prior service credit
Net periodic benefit cost

2014
Healthcare
& Life Ins.

$ 4,650
—
—
—
(117)
$ 4,533

$

$

$

75
1,081
117
(1,378)
—
—
—
$ (105)

$

$

Pension
benefits

2013
Healthcare
& Life Ins.

1,992
(2,553)
174
1,346
(227)
732

$ (2,838)
—
—
—
(387)
$ (3,225)

$

106
493
227
—
(1,346)
—
(174)
(694)

$

$

$

295
963
387
(1,348)
—
—
—
$ 297

Pension
benefits

(1,048)
—
180
—
(314)
(1,182)
236
513
314
—
—
39
(180)
922

$

2012
Healthcare
& Life Ins.

$ 2,444
—
—
—
(261)
$ 2,183

$

$

$

1,597
—
180
—
(312)
1,465

$

276
1,055
261
(1,300)
—
—
—
$ 292

207
585
312
(180)
—
—
—
924

$

Assumptions—Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations as of year-end 2014 and 2013 are:
2014

Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

2013

Pension
benefits

Healthcare
& Life Ins.

Pension
benefits

Healthcare
& Life Ins.

3.50% - 3.65%
7.30%

3.52%
N/A

4.21% - 4.46%
7.50%

4.33%
N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012:
2014

Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

2013

2012

Pension
benefits

Healthcare
& Life Ins.

Pension
benefits

Healthcare
& Life Ins.

Pension
benefits

Healthcare
& Life Ins.

4.21% - 4.46%
7.50%

4.33%
N/A

3.30% - 3.57%
7.50%

3.41%
N/A

3.89% - 4.07%
7.50%

4.00%
N/A

The expected long-term return on plan assets is based upon the plans’ consideration of historical and forward-looking returns and the Company’s estimation of what a portfolio,
with the target allocation described below, will earn over a long-term horizon. The discount rate is derived using the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve.
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Assumed health care cost trend rates are 8% grading to 6% and 9% grading to 7% as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, respectively. Assumed health care cost trend
rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the Company’s healthcare and life insurance benefits plans. A one percentage-point change in assumed health care
cost trend rates would have the following effects as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013:
2014

Total service cost and interest cost components
APBO

2013

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

$

$

$

$

39
1,333

(34)
(1,136)

66
1,251

(55)
(1,073)

Plan Assets—The defined benefit pension plans’ (the “Plans”) investment strategy is to minimize investment risk while generating acceptable returns. The Plans currently invest
a relatively high proportion of their assets in fixed income securities, while the remainder is invested in equity securities, cash reserves and precious metals. The equity securities
are diversified into funds with growth and value investment strategies. The target allocation for plan assets is as follows: fixed income securities –63%; equity securities – 30%;
cash reserves –5%; and precious metals –2%. The Plans’ current investment allocations are within the tolerance of the target allocation.
Fair value determinations are based on the following hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value:
•

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

•

Level 2—Observable inputs, other than quoted prices, for similar assets or liabilities in active markets

•

Level 3—Unobservable inputs, which includes the use of valuation models

The Company had no Level 3 investments as of or during the years ended December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013.
At December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, the Plans’ assets were invested predominantly in publicly traded fixed-income securities and equities, but may invest in other asset
classes in the future subject to the parameters of the investment policy. The Plans’ investments in fixed-income assets include U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency securities and
corporate bonds. The Plans’ investments in equities include U.S. and international securities and equity funds. The Company estimates the fair value of the Plans’ assets using
various valuation techniques and, to the extent available, quoted market prices in active markets or observable market inputs. The descriptions and fair value methodologies for
the Plans’ assets are as follows:
Fixed Income Securities – Corporate and government bonds are classified as Level 2 assets, as they are either valued at quoted market prices from observable pricing sources at
the reporting date or valued based upon comparable securities with similar yields and credit ratings.
Equity Securities — Equity securities are valued at the closing market price reported on a U.S. exchange where the security is actively traded and are therefore classified as Level
1 assets.
Cash - The carrying amounts of cash approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity.
Precious Metals — Precious metals are valued at the closing market price reported on a U.S. exchange where the security is actively traded and are therefore classified as Level 1
assets.
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The fair value of the Plans’ assets by asset class and fair value hierarchy level as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 were as follows:

Fixed income securities:
Intermediate - government
Intermediate - corporate
Short-term - government
Short-term - corporate
Equity securities:
U.S. Large cap value
U.S. Large cap growth
U.S. Mid cap value
U.S. Mid cap growth
U.S. Small cap value
U.S. Small cap growth
International
Cash
Precious metals
Total

Fixed income securities:
Intermediate - government
Intermediate - corporate
Short-term - government
Short-term - corporate
Equity securities:
U.S. Large cap value
U.S. Large cap growth
U.S. Mid cap value
U.S. Mid cap growth
U.S. Small cap value
U.S. Small cap growth
International
Cash
Precious metals
Total

Total fair
value

2014
Quoted prices in active
markets for identical
assets (Level 1)

Observable
inputs (Level 2)

$

$

$

1,468
3,342
2,435
3,700

—
—
—
—

1,180
1,173
590
598
597
611
1,098
1,712
368
$ 18,872

$

Total fair
value

2013
Quoted prices in active
markets for identical
assets (Level 1)

Observable
inputs (Level 2)

$

$

$

1,647
3,138
2,168
4,040

1,221
1,536
600
603
610
599
889
1,665
358
$ 19,074

$

1,180
1,173
590
598
597
611
1,098
1,712
368
7,927

1,468
3,342
2,435
3,700

—
—
—
—
1,221
1,536
600
603
610
599
889
1,665
358
8,081

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
10,945

1,647
3,138
2,168
4,040
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
10,993

Cash Flows - The Company expects to contribute approximately $1.1 million to its pension plans and $1.0 million to its healthcare and life insurance benefits plans in 2015.
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The estimated benefit payments for each of the next five years and the five-year period thereafter are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020 - 2024
Total

(9)

Pension
benefits

Healthcare and Life
Insurance Benefits

$ 1,715
1,743
1,740
1,773
1,777
8,524
$ 17,272

$

$

1,041
1,015
893
893
823
3,912
8,577

Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation and Claims
The Company is party to certain legal actions arising from the ordinary course of business activities. In the opinion of management, these actions are without merit or that the
ultimate disposition, if any, resulting from them will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or liquidity. The Company’s policy is to
record legal fees as incurred.
In February 2011, the Company incurred a property loss related to a sunken barge with cement product aboard. As of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, the Company
had a $0.4 million and $0.9 million, respectively, accrual for the estimated remaining costs to remove the barge.
Environmental Remediation
The Company’s manufacturing operations are subject to and affected by Federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the environment, health and safety and other
regulatory matters. These operations require environmental operating permits, which are subject to modification, renewal and revocation. The Company regularly monitors and
reviews its operations, procedures and policies for compliance with these laws and regulations. Despite these compliance efforts, risk of environmental liability is inherent in the
operation of Continental Cement’s business, as it is with other companies engaged in similar businesses and there can be no assurance that environmental liabilities will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company in the future.
Other
The Company is obligated under various firm purchase commitments for certain raw materials and services that are in the ordinary course of business. Management does not
expect any significant changes in the market value of these goods and services during the commitment period that would have a material adverse effect on the financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows of the Company. The terms of the purchase commitments are generally less than one year.

(10)

Related-Party Transactions
Cement sales to companies owned by certain noncontrolling members of Continental Cement were approximately $14.3 million, $12.7 million and $12.5 million during the years
ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, and accounts receivables due from these parties were approximately $1.2 million and
$0.2 million as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, respectively.
Cement sales to a subsidiary of Summit Materials were approximately $4.5 million, $4.5 million and $3.8 million for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively, and accounts receivable due from this party was approximately $0.3 million and $0.2 million as of December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013,
respectively.
As of December 28, 2013, the Company had accrued interest payments of $0.7 million, respectively, due to a certain noncontrolling member for a related-party note, which was
paid in 2014. The principal balance on the note was repaid in January 2012.
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The Company purchased equipment from a certain noncontrolling member for approximately $2.3 million in 2011, which was paid for in 2012.
(11)

Leasing Arrangements
Rent expense incurred, including short term rentals, primarily related to land and equipment, was $0.4 million in each of the years ended December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013
and $0.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2012.
Minimum rental commitments under long-term operating and capital leases as of December 27, 2014, are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
(12)

Operating
Leases

Capital
Leases

$

$

132
115
79
76
73

334
328
328
328
328

Supplementary Data (Unaudited)
Supplemental financial information (unaudited) by quarter was as follows for the years ended December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013:
2014

(in thousands)

Revenues
Operating income (loss)
Net income (loss)
ITEM 9.

2013

4Q

3Q

2Q

1Q

4Q

3Q

2Q

1Q

$ 29,446
8,876
$ 6,034

$ 38,168
6,920
$ 3,964

$ 31,822
9,201
$ 6,180

$ 10,628
(5,291)
$ (8,153)

$ 22,509
9,259
$ 6,668

$ 34,155
10,965
$ 8,157

$ 27,224
9,053
$ 6,272

$ 12,361
(8,449)
$ (11,232)

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and the Company’s principal financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of
December 27, 2014. Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of December 27, 2014, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to accomplish their objectives at the reasonable assurance level.
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company. Internal control over financial reporting includes
maintaining records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of
our financial statements; in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
our management and directors; and providing reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could
have a material effect on our financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a
misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.
With the participation of Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 27, 2014 based on the Internal Control–Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 27, 2014. There was no change in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the Company’s last fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission applicable to
“non-accelerated filers”.
ITEM 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION.

Pursuant to Section 219 of the Iran Threat Reduction and Syria Human Rights Act of 2012, which added Section 13(r) of the Exchange Act, the Company hereby incorporates by
reference herein Exhibit 99.1 of this report, which includes disclosures publicly filed and/or provided to The Blackstone Group L.P., an affiliate of certain investment funds that indirectly
own a majority of the equity interests of the Company, by Travelport Limited and Travelport Worldwide Limited, which may be considered the Company’s affiliates.
The Company is not presently aware that it or its subsidiary has knowingly engaged in any transaction or dealing reportable under Section 13(r) of the Exchange Act during the
year ended December 27, 2014.

PART III
ITEM 14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The audit committee of the board of directors of the general partner of Summit Materials Holdings L.P., the indirect parent company of Summit Materials, pre-approves audit and
tax services performed for Summit Materials and its subsidiaries, including those performed for Continental Cement. The table below summarizes the fees allocated to Continental
Cement from the aggregate fees paid to KPMG LLP by Summit Materials in 2014 and 2013, which were all preapproved by the audit committee of the general partner of Summit Materials
Holdings L.P. A description of these various fees and services follows the table.
(in thousands)

2014

2013

Audit Fees
Tax Fees
Total

$574
196
$770

$547
225
$772

Audit Fees
The aggregate fees allocated to the Company for professional services performed by KPMG LLP for the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and reviews of
its unaudited quarterly consolidated financial statements.
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Tax Fees
The aggregate fees allocated to the Company for professional services performed by KPMG LLP in connection with routine tax compliance, general tax consulting services and
services related to a state tax audit.

PART IV
ITEM 15.
1.

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Financial statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Redeemable Members’ Interest and Member’s Interest

2.

Financial statement schedules:
Financial statement schedules are omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required information is provided in the
financial statements or notes thereto.

3.

Exhibits:
3.1

Certificate of Formation of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C., as amended (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.7 of the registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333-187556-38)).

3.2

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.8 of the registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333-187556-38)).

3.3

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9
of the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333-187556-38)).

4.1

Indenture, dated as of January 30, 2012, among Summit Materials, LLC, Summit Materials Finance Corp., the guarantors named therein and Wilmington Trust,
National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333187556)).

4.2

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 13, 2012, among Norris Quarries, LLC and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333-187556)).

4.3

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 17, 2014, among Summit Materials, LLC, Summit Materials Finance Corp., the guarantors named therein and
Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 filed with the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 23,
2014 (File No. 333-187556)).

4.4

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 21, 2014, among Alcomat, LLC, Alleyton Resource Company, LLC, Alleyton Services Company, LLC and
Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 filed with the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed March 7,
2014 (File No. 333-187556)).

4.5

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 30, 2014, among Buckhorn Materials, LLC and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 6, 2014 (File No. 333-187556)).

4.6

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 2, 2014, among Troy Vines, Incorporated, Summit Materials International, LLC and Wilmington Trust, National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 filed with the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 9, 2014 (File No. 333-187556).

4.7

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 8, 2014, among Summit Materials, LLC, Summit Materials Finance Corp., the guarantors named therein and
Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 filed with the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September
9, 2014 (File No. 333-187556).
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4.8

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 19, 2014, among Southwest Ready Mix, LLC, Concrete Supply of Topeka, Inc., Penny’s Concrete and
Ready Mix, L.L.C. and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 filed with Summit Materials, Inc.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on January 9, 2015 (File No. 333-201058)).

4.9

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 22, 2014, between Colorado County Sand & Gravel Co., L.L.C. and Wilmington Trust, National Association,
as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 filed with Summit Materials, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on January 9, 2015 (File No. 333201058)).

4.10

Form of 10 1⁄2% Senior Note due 2020 (included in Exhibit 4.1).

4.11

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of January 17, 2014, among Summit Materials, LLC, Summit Materials Finance Corp., the guarantors named therein, Merrill
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and the several other initial purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 filed with the registrant’s Current
Report on
Form 8-K, filed January 23, 2014 (File No. 333-187556)).

4.12

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2014, among Summit Materials, LLC, Summit Materials Finance Corp., the guarantors named therein,
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and the several other initial purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 filed with the registrant’s
Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed September 9, 2014 (File No. 333-187556)).

10.1

Credit Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2012, by and among Summit Materials, LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., as joint lead arrangers, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., UBS Securities LLC, Barclays Capital, Credit
Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as joint bookrunners, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, collateral agent and swing
line lender, Bank of America, N.A., as letter of credit issuer, and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as syndication agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Amendment No. 1 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed May 3, 2013 (File No. 333-187556)).

10.2

Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 5, 2013, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2012, by and among Summit Materials, LLC, Bank of America, N.A.
as sole lead arranger, and Bank of America, N.A. and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as joint bookrunners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333-187556)).

10.3

Amendment No. 2, dated as of January 16, 2014, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2012, by and among Summit Materials, LLC, the guarantors party
thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, collateral agent, L/C issuer and swing line lender and the other parties thereto (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 filed with the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 23, 2014 (File No. 333-187556)).

10.4

Tranche A Revolving Credit Commitment Conversion Agreement, dated as of February 11, 2013, under the Credit Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2012, among
Summit Materials, LLC, the guarantors party thereto, the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time parties to the Credit Agreement,
Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, collateral agent, L/C issuer and swing line lender and the other parties thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 of the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333-187556)).

10.5

Security Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2012, by and among the grantors identified therein and Bank of America, N.A., as collateral agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-4, filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 333-187556)).

10.6

Contribution and Purchase Agreement, dated December 18, 2014, between Summit Materials, Inc., Summit Materials Holdings L.P., Summit Materials Holdings GP,
Ltd., and Summit Owner Holdco LLC, and Missouri Materials Company, L.L.C., J&J Midwest Group, L.L.C., R. Michael Johnson Family Limited Liability Company,
and Thomas A. Beck Family, LLC, and Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 filed with Summit Materials, Inc.’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on January 9, 2015 (File No. 333-201058)).

21.1*

Subsidiary of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C

31.1*

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2*

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1**

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
39

Table of Contents

*
**
+

32.2**

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

95.1*

Mine Safety Disclosures.

99.1*

Section 13(r) Disclosure.

101.INS*

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

Filed herewith
Furnished herewith
Indicates management or compensating plan or arrangement

The agreements and other documents filed as exhibits to this report are not intended to provide factual information or other disclosure other than with respect to the terms of the
agreements or other documents themselves, and you should not rely on them for that purpose. In particular, any representations and warranties made by the Company in these
agreements or other documents were made solely within the specific context of the relevant agreement or document and may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they
were made or at any other time.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C.
Date: February 23, 2015

By: /s/ Thomas Beck
Thomas Beck
President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated on the 23rd day of February 2015.
Signature

Title

/s/ Thomas Beck
Thomas Beck

President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Mark Strieker
Mark Strieker

Vice President of Finance and Administration
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Thomas W. Hill
Thomas W. Hill

Director

/s/ Julia C. Kahr
Julia C. Kahr

Director

/s/ Michael J. Brady
Michael J. Brady

Director

/s/ Michael K. Farmer
Michael K. Farmer

Director

/s/ Elliot E. Farmer
Elliot E. Farmer

Director

/s/ R. Michael Johnson
R. Michael Johnson

Director
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Section 2: EX-21.1 (EX-21.1)
Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARY OF CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C
(as of February 23, 2015)
Name

Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Green America Recycling, LLC

Missouri
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Section 3: EX-31.1 (EX-31.1)
Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Thomas Beck, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (the “registrant”);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles;

5.

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 23, 2015
/s/ Thomas Beck
Thomas Beck
President
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Section 4: EX-31.2 (EX-31.2)
Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Mark Strieker, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (the “registrant”);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 23, 2015
/s/ Mark Strieker
Mark Strieker
Vice President of Finance and Administration
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Section 5: EX-32.1 (EX-32.1)
Exhibit 32.1
Certification
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2014 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Thomas Beck, President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(i)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(ii)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 23, 2015
/s/ Thomas Beck
Thomas Beck
President
(Principal Executive Officer)
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.
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Section 6: EX-32.2 (EX-32.2)
Exhibit 32.2
Certification
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2014 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mark Strieker, Vice President of Finance and Administration of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(i)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(ii)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 23, 2015
/s/ Mark Strieker
Mark Strieker
Vice President of Finance and Administration
(Principal Financial Officer)
The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.
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Section 7: EX-95.1 (EX-95.1)
Exhibit 95.1
Mine Safety Disclosures
The operation of the Company’s two aggregates quarries and underground mine are subject to regulation by the federal Mine Safety and Health Administration
(“MSHA”) under the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 (the “Mine Act”). MSHA inspects the Company’s quarries and mines on a regular basis and issues various citations
and orders when it believes a violation has occurred under the Mine Act. Whenever MSHA issues a citation or order, it also generally proposes a civil penalty, or fine, related to the
alleged violation. Citations or orders may be contested and appealed, and as part of that process, are often reduced in severity and amount, and are sometimes dismissed.
Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), the Company is required to present information regarding certain
mining safety and health citations which MSHA has issued with respect to its aggregates mining operations in its periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). In evaluating this information, consideration should be given to factors such as: (i) the number of citations and orders will vary depending on the size of the quarry or mine and
types of operations (underground or surface) (ii) the number of citations issued will vary from inspector to inspector and location to location and (iii) citations and orders can be
contested and appealed, and in that process, may be reduced in severity and amount, and are sometimes dismissed.
The Company presents the following items regarding certain mining safety and health matters for the year ended December 27, 2014, as applicable:
•

Total number of violations of mandatory health or safety standards that could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mine safety or health hazard
under Section 104 of the Mine Act for which Continental Cement has received a citation from MSHA (hereinafter, “Section 104 S&S Citations”). If MSHA determines that a
violation of a mandatory health or safety standard is likely to result in a reasonably serious injury or illness under the unique circumstance contributed to by the violation,
MSHA will classify the violation as a “significant and substantial” violation (commonly referred to as a “S&S” violation). MSHA inspectors will classify each citation or order
written as a “S&S” violation or not.

•

Total number of orders issued under Section 104(b) of the Mine Act (hereinafter, “Section 104(b) Orders”). These orders are issued for situations in which MSHA determines a
previous violation covered by a Section 104(a) citation has not been totally abated within the prescribed time period, so a further order is needed to require the mine operator to
immediately withdraw all persons (except authorized persons) from the affected area of a quarry or mine.

•

Total number of citations and orders for unwarrantable failure of the mine operator to comply with mandatory health or safety standards under Section 104(d) of the Mine Act
(hereinafter, “Section 104(d) Citations and Orders”). These violations are similar to those described above, but the standard is that the violation could significantly and
substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a safety or health hazard, but the conditions do not cause imminent danger, and the MSHA inspector finds that the violation
is caused by an unwarranted failure of the operator to comply with the health and safety standards.

•

Total number of flagrant violations under Section 110(b)(2) of the Mine Act (hereinafter, “Section 110(b)(2) Violations”). These violations are penalty violations issued if MSHA
determines that violations are “flagrant”, for which civil penalties may be assessed. A “flagrant” violation means a reckless or repeated failure to make reasonable efforts to
eliminate a known violation of a mandatory health or safety standard that substantially and proximately caused, or reasonably could have been expected to cause, death or
serious bodily injury.

•

Total number of imminent danger orders issued under Section 107(a) of the Mine Act (hereinafter, “Section 107(a) Orders”). These orders are issued for situations in which
MSHA determines an imminent danger exists in the quarry or mine and results in orders of immediate withdrawal of all persons (except certain authorized persons) from the area
of the quarry or mine affected by its condition until the imminent danger and the underlying conditions causing the imminent danger no longer exist.

•

Total dollar value of proposed assessments from MSHA under the Mine Act. These are the amounts of proposed assessments issued by MSHA with each citation or order for
the time period covered by the reports. Penalties are assessed by MSHA according to a formula that considers a number of factors, including the mine operator’s history, size,
negligence, gravity of the violation, good faith in trying to correct the violation promptly, and the effect of the penalty on the operator’s ability to continue in business.

•

Total number of mining-related fatalities. Mines subject to the Mine Act are required to report all fatalities occurring at their facilities unless the fatality is determined to be “nonchargeable” to the mining industry. The final rules of the SEC require disclosure of mining-related fatalities at mines subject to the Mine Act. Only fatalities determined by
MSHA not to be mining-related may be excluded.

•

Receipt of written notice from MSHA of a pattern (or a potential to have such a pattern) of violations of mandatory health or safety standards that are of such nature as could
have significantly and substantially contributed to the cause and effect of other mine health or safety hazards under Section 104(e) of the Mine Act. If MSHA determines that a
mine has a “pattern” of these types of violations, or the potential to have such a pattern, MSHA is required to notify the mine operator of the existence of such a thing.

•

Legal actions before the Federal Mine Safety and Health Review Commission (the “Commission”) pending as of the last day of period.

•

Legal actions before the Commission initiated during period.

•

Legal actions before the Commission resolved during period.

The Commission is an independent adjudicative agency that provides administrative trial and appellate review of legal disputes arising under the Mine Act. The cases may involve,
among other questions, challenges by operators to citations, orders and penalties they have received from MSHA, or complaints of discrimination by miners under Section 105 of the
Mine Act. There were no legal actions pending before the Commission for any of Continental Cement’s quarries or the underground mine, as of or during the year ended December 27,
2014.
Appendix 1 follows.

APPENDIX 1

Name of
Name of
Company Operation
Continental
Cement Hannibal
Company Plant
Continental
Cement Owensville
Company Plant
Continental
Cement Hannibal
Company Underground

MSHA
ID
Number

Total
Total
Received
Number
Dollar
Total
Written
Total
of
Section
Value
Number
Notice
Dollar
Section
104(d)
of
of
under
Value of
Number of
104
Section Citations
Section
Section
Purposed
Mining
Section Number of Number of Penalties Complaints of
Number of
S&S
104(b)
and
110(b)(2) 107(a)
MSHA
Related
104(e)
Contested Contested
in
Discharge or
State Inspections Citations Orders
Orders Violations Orders Assessments Fatalities (yes/no) Citations Penalties
Contest Discrimination

2300217

MO

—

2301038

MO

4

2302434

MO

6

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

No

1

—

—

—

—

427

—

No

—

—

—

—

18

—

—

—

9,740

—

No

—

—

—

—

1

7

7

36,986
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Section 8: EX-99.1 (EX-99.1)
Exhibit 99.1
Section 13(r) Disclosure
The disclosures reproduced below were initially included in periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) by The Blackstone
Group L.P. (“Blackstone”), Travelport Limited and Travelport Worldwide Limited, as applicable, with respect to the quarters ended March 31, 2014, June 30, 2014 and
September 30, 2014, in accordance with Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As of the date Continental Cement Company, L.L.C. (“Continental
Cement”) filed its Form 10-K for the year ended December 27, 2014 with the SEC, neither Blackstone nor Travelport Worldwide Limited had filed its Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Therefore, the disclosures reproduced below do not include information for Continental Cement’s quarter ended December 27, 2014. Travelport Limited and
Travelport Worldwide Limited may be considered affiliates of Blackstone, and therefore affiliates of Continental Cement. Continental Cement did not independently verify or
participate in the preparation of any of these disclosures.
Travelport Limited included the following disclosure in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2014:
Trade Sanctions Disclosure
The following activities are disclosed as required by Section 13(r)(1)(D)(iii) of the Exchange Act.
As part of our global business in the travel industry, we provide certain passenger travel-related GDS and Technology Services to Iran Air. We also provide certain
Technology Services to Iran Air Tours. All of these services are either exempt from applicable sanctions prohibitions pursuant to a statutory exemption permitting transactions
ordinarily incident to travel or, to the extent not otherwise exempt, specifically licensed by the U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Control. Subject to any changes in the exempt/licensed
status of such activities, we intend to continue these business activities, which are directly related to and promote the arrangement of travel for individuals.
The gross revenue and net profit attributable to these activities in the quarter ended March 31, 2014 were approximately $181,000 and $125,000, respectively.
Blackstone included the following disclosure in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2014:
Travelport Limited, which may be considered our affiliate, included the disclosure reproduced below in its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014. We have not
independently verified or participated in the preparation of this disclosure.
“As part of our global business in the travel industry, we provide certain passenger travel-related GDS and Technology Services to Iran Air. We also provide certain
airline Technology Services to Iran Air Tours. All of these services are either exempt from applicable sanctions prohibitions pursuant to a statutory exemption permitting transactions
ordinarily incident to travel or, to the extent not otherwise exempt, specifically licensed by the U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Control. Subject to any changes in the exempt/licensed
status of such activities, we intend to continue these business activities, which are directly related to and promote the arrangement of travel for individuals.

—

The gross revenue and net profit attributable to these activities in the quarter ended June 30, 2014 were approximately $161,000 and $117,000, respectively.”
Travelport Worldwide Limited included the following disclosure in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2014:
Trade Sanctions Disclosure
The following activities are disclosed as required by Section 13(r)(1)(D)(iii) of the Exchange Act.
As part of our global business in the travel industry, we provide certain passenger travel-related Travel Commerce Platform and Technology Services to Iran Air. We also
provide certain Technology Services to Iran Air Tours. All of these services are either exempt from applicable sanctions prohibitions pursuant to a statutory exemption permitting
transactions ordinarily incident to travel or, to the extent not otherwise exempt, specifically licensed by the U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Control. Subject to any changes in the
exempt/licensed status of such activities, we intend to continue these business activities, which are directly related to and promote the arrangement of travel for individuals.
The gross revenue and net profit attributable to these activities in the quarter ended September 30, 2014 were approximately $171,000 and $124,000, respectively.
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